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BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT
The Board of Directors have the pleasure in submatting their neport and the sudised consalidated financial stasements of Fujairab
Cement Industries PI5S.C (“Company™) and its subsidiary (together refemmed o as the =Group) far the year ended

3 December 2022, These consolidated financial satements are prepared by management. Management hins taken responsibility
Tt e preparaiion and fair presemniion of these consolidaed financial satements in accordance with the International Finzncal
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the applicable provision of UAE Federsl Law Mo, 32 of 2021 on Comenercaal Companics and
the Articles of Assocantion of the Company and the Boand of Directors have given clearance for ssuance of these consolidated
fimancial satements on 9 March 2023

Ircarponeitos

Fujairat Cement Industries PJ.S.C — Fujsirah is a public joint stock company incorporated in the Emirte of Fujairah by
an Amiri Decree isswed by His Highness The Ruler of Fujaimh on 20 December 1979, The Company's ardinary sharnes re
listed om the Abo Dhabi Secwritics Exchange and Bowrss Kuwait (Kuwait Siock Exchange) In the Anmeal Geserzl Mecting
heid on 31 March 2022, 1he sharcholders approved the delisting of the Company’s shares from Kuwait Stock Exchange
{Boaran Kuwsit), The losi d.py -:rl"lndiq; pl'H'u:E'nnqnu}r'::lhm‘in Beodurss Buwail was on 30 November 2023,

The Company it domiciled in Fajairah and its registered address is PO Box : 600, Fajairah — United Arab Emirates.

Prlnciprl activifies

The main activithes of Company and its sebsidiary (colbectively referred 1o as the *Group™) are clinkers and bydraulic cement
manilaciEers and rexdy mixed concrete manufacturing.

Finoacial resuilty

Total reverme of the Group for the vear amwunted b AED 374 577,222 (2021: AED 419.877,508]) ard the Group incurmed a
loss of AED 143 847,098 (202 1: AED. 162,738,525,

trnlng Concerm

The Board of Directors has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue &5 a going concemn and s satisfied tha
the Group has the resources to condinise in business for the foresecable future, 5o they conbmue io adopt e poing concem
basis in prepaning the consolidated financial semements for the vesr endled 31 December 2027,

Transaciions with relaled pariies

The consolidaied fAnancizl statements disclose related pancs trarmactions and balances . A trapsactions are carmed out as
part of our rormal courss of business and i compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Birard af Directors
hMobammed Bin Hamad Bin Saif Al Shargi Chainman
Sobemed Ghaith Khalfan Al Mohairbi Vice -Chatrman
A bl Ciha fowr Hashem Abdul Ghaforr Babroozian B rrinier
Sasd Abduliah Al Hanian Member
Fahad Ahmed Abdulla Alshaacr Member
Seced Moberak Obaid Ahmed Alzahmi Memiber
siobamed Sharsel Habib Mobarmed Rafiec Alawsdbi kember
Abdoulatesl Sand AbdolisieeT Aldosari Member
Walid Abdalariz Fakich Member
Wohammad Saeed Aldowalzan Member
The Public Instiution for Social Secunty — Kiwah Staie Member

Audirars

The consilidated financial stxiernents for the vear ended 31 Decerber 222 were sudited by Talal Abu-Chazaleh & Co
[ntermtional — Fujairah and they have indicated 1heir willingness to conlinae as the suditor of the Ciroep For the vear J023.
A resolution proposing their re-appoiniment will be put a1 the anoual general mecting.

Wlehmmed Bin 8 ot hs.urr.u Shargi
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Fujuirah Cement Industries P.15.C
Fujairah = United Arab Emirates

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Chpintan

We have sudited the consolidated financial statemenis of Fujairah Cement Industrics F15.C
{ihe “Compuny”) and its subsidiary (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, concolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consclidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes 1o the congolidated
financial staternents including a summary of significant accounting pelicies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and is consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intenational Financial Reporting

Srandards ([FRS:)

Basis for Cpinion

We conducted our sudit in sccordance with Iniernational Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the Awditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Group 8 accordance
with the ‘Intemationa] Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
{IESBA Code} together with the other ethical requirements that arc relevant to our gudit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in the United Arsh Emirales and we have fulfilled our other cthical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related fo Going Concern

We draw attention to Mote 3.1 10 the consolidated financial statements which states that the Group incurred loss
of AED 143,847,098 for the carrent year compared to loss of AED 102,738,529 in the previous year and the
secumulated Josses as at 31 December 2022 amounted to AED 87,523,797 which was offset against wolantary
rescrve as #1 31 December 2022, The cusrent labilities exceeded the current assets by AED 145,009,363, These
events o conditions, along with other matiers &2 et forth in Mate 3.1, indicate that @ material uncerlainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ahility to continue as a going cencem. Our epinion is not maodified
i respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Moner

We draw artention to Note 14 that states that the Group's Board of Directors resolved to offset the losses and/or
the accumulated losses against voluntary reserve as at 31 December 2022, Our opindon is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Key audit matiers

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of mast sipnificance in our sudit of
1he consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matiers were addressed on the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separale opinion on these matters. In addition 1o the matter described in “Material Unceriainty Related
to Going Concern” section, we have determined the matter described below 1o be the key audil matters to be

communicated in our report,

Al Awadhi Tower, 5 floor, office No. 506 o sty et LA el
Hamad Bin Abdullah Street ! Forum oF Firms .l.'H-In.'l.l‘- O dan EJ...". Q% #Jiq
Tel: 4971 9 2229978 s AV 4 TTYLAVA « Lila
Fax: +971 9 2371394 tag.gi“hﬂ] FAVY L TYVArAE - Ll

P.0. Box 1490 — Fujairah tagco.fujairahf@tagi.com okl V14 cay Gl




Independent Auditor's Report to the Shareholders of
Fujairah Cement Industries P.J.S.C (Contineed)

Key audit matters (Contimied)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment included plant and machinery which are disclosed in Note (3) in
these consclidated financial statements, with carrying value of AED. 955,209 516 represcating 5% of tofal
property, plant and equipment and 62% of total assets. The Group's management has hired an external valuer to
estimate the recoverable amount based on fair value (derived through the Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC)
method by desktop exercise and no asset reinspection) bess cost of disposal and the management has concluded
that the fair value of plant and machinery is higher than its carrying value so that no impairment provision was
required for the vear ended 31 December 2022,

We performed the following audit procedures :

= Evaloated the ohjectivity, independence and expertise of the exiernal valuation expert appointed by the
management in valuation of plant and machinery.

= Evaloated the appropriateness of the underlying sssumptions and the methodology used by the valuer and
market practics.

= Assessed the adequacy and completencss of the disclosures presented in these consclidated financial
statemenis.

Irmventories

The verification of Group's stock of raw materials, semi-finished products, buming media and finished products
as af 31 December 2022 representing 16% of total assets and require an independent surveyor to make estimate
of the quantities by using certain systematic measurements/calculations. The areas of focus are whether (i
quantities reparted by the surveyor are ac per physical stock held by the Group as o 31 December 2022 and
valisation of inventories {inclieding spare parts) at lower of cost or net realizable value as assessing net realizable
wilue is an area of significant judgment.

We performed the following audit procedures :

Reviewed the background and experience of the surveyor.

Corrobarated the results of the surveyor repan 10 the inventory moventent,

Verified the physical existence of inventory on sample basis.

Tested the valuation of inventory inchsding review of judgments and assumptions considered regarding
obsolescence and net realizable valuc.

- & & =

Cicher infermation

Manapement is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information incladed in
the Group's Board of Directors Repori of 2022, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report therecn. We obtained the repont of the Group®s Board of Directors, ai the date of our auditer’s
report.

Owur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not cxpress
any form of assyrance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the ather
information identified sbove and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 1o be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we bave performed, we conclude that there is o miaterial misstatement
of this ether information; we are required to repart that fact. Wi have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Consolidated financial satemens

Management is responsible for the prepasation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRSs), and applicable provisions of UAE Federal
Law Mo 32 of 2021 and the Articles of Association of the Company and for such intemnal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

T

B



Independent Auditor's Report to (he Sharebolders of
Fujairah Cement Industries P.J5.C (Continued)

Respomibilivies of Managemeni and thase charged with governance for the Conrolidated financial statements
{Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group®s shility to
continue 85 8 gofng concern, disclosing, a5 epplicable, maiiers related 40 going concern and wing the going
concern basis of pccounting umless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 1o cease operations, or
has mo realistic altermnative but 1o do so.

Thase charged with povernanse are responsible for oversesing the Group”s financial reporiing process.
Awditors Resporsibilities for the Awdir of the Corrolidated financial siztements

Oher objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial stalements as a whole
are free froem msterial misstatement, whedker due 10 fraud or error, and 10 izsue auditor's repon that inclodes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nod lpumdwmludii:-mduﬂndm

fraud or error and are comsidered matenial if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expectod 1o
inMuence the coomomiic decisions of users takea on the basis of these consolidetied finzncial statements.

As part of an sudit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional jodgment and maimam professional
shepliciam throughowet the nodit, We also:

#  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statcments, whether dae in
fraud or error, design and perfiorm audit procedures responsive o those risks, and obtain oudst evidence that
is sufficient and approprinte to provide a basis of our opinion. The risk of notl detecting a material
missiatement resulting from frasd is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Dbisin an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in corder o design sudit procedures that are
iate in the circumstances, but not for the parpoee of expressing an opinion on the eflectiveness of the
Crroiap's internnl comérol.

= FEvalugte the appropristeness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accowsnting eslimates and
related diselosuses made by management,

« Conclude on the sppropristencss of management's use of the going concern basis of sccounting and, based on
the sudil evidence obilained, whethes & material uncertzinty exists related (o events or conditions thal may
cast significant doubd on the Group's ability o continue a8 & poing conctan. I we conclude (hal a materisl
unceriainty exists, we &re required o draw attention in suditor’s report (o the related disclasures in the
consalidated financial steterments or, i such disclosures are iondequate, lo meodify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of auditor’s report. However, fulare
evenls or conditiont may cause the Group 1o eease (o contimes o5 o going concem,

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financinl stements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying tansaclions and
evesls in a manper that achieves fair presentation,

#  Ohbtain sufficicnt appropriste sudit evidence reganding the financial information of the enotities or business
aCtivities within the Grogp (o express an opinion on the consolidated financial statemems. We are responsible
fior the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit, We remain solely responsible for cur audit
opisian.

We communicele with those charged with povemance reganding, among other maiters, ihe plannced scope and

timing of the audit and significant sudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our awdit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement thal we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them i relationships and other matiers that may
reasonably be thought 1o bear on owr independence, and where apphicable, related safcguards.



Iedependent Avditor's Repord Lo the Shareholders of
Fujsirah Cement Industries P.J.5.C (Coolinued)

Auditor s Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Concolidated financial siatements (Contined)

From the matiers communicsted with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
mast significance in the audil of the consolidated financial statements of the curvent period and are therefore the
key sudit matters. We describe these matters in cur suditoe’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure sbout (the matter should nol be communicated im our repost becauss the adverse consequences of doing
50 wiould reasemably be expected & outweigh the pubilic imercst benefite of such communication,

Heport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenis

As required by UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 we report that:

1, We have abtained afl the information and explanation we considered necessary for our sudit.

2. The consabidsted financisl Aaftements ere prepased and camply, in all material respect with the applicable
provisiens of UAE Federal Law Mo, 32 of 2021,

3. The Group has maintained proper books of account.

4. The Bmancial infoemstion of the Board of Directors report ane in agreemenl with the books of account and
records of the Group.

5. As disclosed in nole 1 1o the consolidated financial statements, the Group has not purchased or invested in any
shares during the year ended 31 December 2023,

&, Transactions and terms with related pariies are disclased in Mot 19

7. The Social Contributions made during the year are disclosed in Mote 24.

8. Based on the infarmation and explanation that has been made available 1o vs nothing came W0 our aliention
which causes us 1o believe that the Group has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 2022

any of the applicable provisicas of UAE Federal Law Mo, 32 of 2021 or the Articles of Associztion of the
Company which would have a material affect on the Group®s activitics or on ils financial posithon fof the year.

TALAL ABU-GHAZALEH & CO. INTERNATIONAL

Musich
Licensed Auditor Mo. 1130

9 Morch 2023



Fraamran CEMENT INDUSTRIES PLOS.C
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 ExXHIBIT A
022 2021
Mote AED AR
ALSETS
Mon-Current Asseis
Property, plant and equipment 5 1.122,192,578 1.169,626,119
Right -of —usc asscts 6 99,778,553 109,645,475
Inlangible assels 7 210,722 -
Total Non-Corrent Asscis 1,222,181 853 1.279.271.5%
Current Assets
inventories ] 22179167 2ET Dt 608
Trade receivabdes 9 o 983,308 04,304,374
Advances and other receivables I B 166430 B.574, 36
Cash and cash eguivalents 1] 1,323,554 723, 106
Total Current Assets 321,652 459 0, a6 524
ToTAL ASSETS 1,544 834 312 16609180118
SHAREHOLDERS' EGUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders” Equity
Share capital 2 JEE RGSIZ0 355865320
SOy reserve I3 161,750,412 161,750,411
Voluntary reserve 14 135,012,205 232.536,002
Revaluation reserve 5 34,747 500 34,747,506
Retpined camings - 56,323,501
Total Shareholders’ Equity - Exhibit C 687,375,437 831,222,535
MNon-Corrent Liabilities
Employoes” end of service benefits 15 13,081,321 14,298,111
Lease lbilities 16 112,708,265 136,202 549
Bank borrowings 17 234,611 227,643 871
Trade and other payables 18 29,971,846 15,270,312
Toial Mea-Curreat Liabilities 159,797,053 387,414,843
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 108,549,022 132,512,638
Leate liakilitics |6 28R40 674 15030 734
Bank bormwings 17 339,563,124 I05.TIE IR
Total Current Linhilities 467,661,822 51,280,740
ToTaL SHAREHDLDERS" E{JIJIT'F AND LIABRILITIES 1,544, 834,312 i,ﬁﬁg.‘;'m,l 15

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN

INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the best of our knowledge, the financial information included in these consolidated financial statements
faithy presents in all material respects the financial condition, result of operation and cash flows of the Group

as of, and for, the periods presented therein.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2023
and signed on their behalf by :

MNaser Khammas
{General Manager)



FuJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PLS.C

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ExHigir B
Note 2022 2021
AED AED
Revenue 22 374,577,222 419,977,908
Cost of sales (423,076,247) (410,658,137}
Gross (loss)/profit (48,499.025) 9.319,771
Selling and distribution expenses 23 (12,103,939) (53,577,550}
General and administrative expenses 24 {12,153,679) (14,279,619)
Provision for impairment loss of trade reccivables  %c) {11,212,052) (15095491
Allowance for slow moving spare parts E(b) (6,114,492) -
Write-down of inventories to net realizable value 8ic) (18,275,313) (5,568,397)
Factory costs duning stoppage 25 (9. 460,660) -
Other income 26 4,054,947 1,651,339
Orperating loss (113,764,213)  (77,549.967)
Finance cost — bank borrowings (25,945,522) (20,729,593)
Finance cost — lease lLiabilities (4,137,363) (4,458,969)
Laoss for the year = Exhibit D (143,847,098)  (102,738,529)
Other comprehensive income :
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently o profit or loss
Surplus on land revaluation = 34,747,300
Total comprehensive loss for the year- Exhibit € (143,847,008)  (67,991,029)
Basic loss per share 27 (0.404) {0.289)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN
INTEGEAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oy

AL

MNaser Khamimas

(Gemeral Manager)
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FulalRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PLJLS.C
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 EXHIBIT D
2022 2021
AED AED
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year - Exhibit B (143,847, 098) £102,738,529)
Adjostments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 56,211,897 54,177,829
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 10,182,875 10,274,135
Amontization of imangible assets 38,795 =
Employees end of service benelits 1,379,860 1,114,706
Provision for impairment loss of trade receivables 11,212,052 15095491
Allowance for slow moving spare parts 6,114,492 -
Write-down of inventories o net realizable value 18,275,313 £.568.397
Finance cost — lease liabilities 4,137,365 4458 950
Finance cost — bank borrowings 25,045,521 20,729,593
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities (10,348,929) 8680501
Decreasefincrease) i invenloncs 8,659,127 {10,037.61%)
Diecrease in irade receivaibleés 22,104,014 65, 159,022
Decreased ncrease) in advances and other receivables 407,916 (2637 A8D)
{Decrease Mincrease in trade and other payables (9,354,288) 5,266,631
Settlements of employees end of service benefits (2,596,650) (1,157,732)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activitics 8,876,150 65,274 311
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition of property, plant and equipment (7,210,274} (27,068,125)
Mel Cash Used in Investing Activities (7,211,274 (27.068,125)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities (6,140,710} {6,114 B45)
Proceeds from bank-term bormowings 44,009.878 -
Repayments of bank-term borrowings (27,756,775) (89,265,769)
Proceads from other bank borrowings, net 14,376,455 71,393,310
Finance cost paid on bank borrowWings (25,553,316) (20,752,334}
Mel Cash Used in Financing Activitics (1,064,468) (38,739.638)
Mel increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents GO0 448 (5331 ,452)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 723,106 1,256,558
Cash and cash equivalends at end of year - Note 11 1,521 554 723,106

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN

INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9.



Fusaira CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENpDED 31 DECEMEER 2022

L.

Bt

|

STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

Fujairab Cement Industries PJ.S.C — Fujairah (hereafter referred to as the
“Company™) is a public joint stock company incorparated in the Emirate of Fujairah by an
Amiri Decree issued by His Highness the Ruler of Fujairah on 20 December 1979, The
Company's ordinary shares are listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange and Boursa
Kuwait {Kuwait Stock Exchange). In the Annual General Meeting held on 31 March 2022,
the sharcholders approved the delisting of the Company’s shares from Kuwail Stock
Exchange (Boursa Kuwaitl), The last day of trading of the Company’s shares in Boursa
Kuwait was on 30 November 2022,

The main activities of Company and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as the
“Group™) are clinkers and hydraulic cement manufacturers and ready mixed concrete
manufacturing.

The Company is domiciled in Fujairah and its registered address is P.O. Box ¢
600, Fujairah — United Arab Emirates.

The Group has not purchased or invested in any shares during the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS

The accounting pelicies adopled in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those applicd by the Group in the interpretation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year cnded 31 December 2021 except for the adoption of the following new
standards, interpretation and amendmends,

Stamndards, interpretations issued and cffective for the current year

The Group has adopted all the applicable new and revised standards and interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and the Internationzl Financial Reporting
Interpretations Cammittee (IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for
the year beginning on 1 January 2022,

»  Proceeds before intended use (Amendments fo TAS (16) Property, Plant and Equipmient.

The amendments prehibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plam
and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use,
i.e. proceeds while bringing the assct 1o the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management, Instead, an entity recognizes the
proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those ilems, in profit or loss.

The smendments also clarify that an entity is ‘testing whether the asset is functioning
properly’ when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset.

If not presented scparately in the statement of income, the financial statements shall disclose
the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate 1o items produced that
are nol an output of the entity’s ordinary activitics, and which line item(s) in the stalement of
income include(s) such proceeds and cost.
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FuJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDEDR 3] DECEMBER 2022

2. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.1 Standards, interpretations issued and effective for the current year (Continued)
o Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3).

Minor amendments were made o IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” to update the refercnces
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and add an exception for the
recognition of liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of 1AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and IFRIC 21 Levies. The amendments also
confirm that contingent assets should not be recognised at the acquisition date.

s Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37).

The amendments specify that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contraci. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example,
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling that contract, among others)

Before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, an enlity recognizes
any impairment loss that has occurred on assets used in fulfilling the contract.

v Annual improvements to IFRS 2018-2020 {(Amendments fo IFRS I, IFRS 9, IFRS
16 and TAS 41)

« IFRS I Amendments, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a firsi-
time adopter later than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative
translation differences. As a result of the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the
exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a) may elect, in its financial statements, to measure
cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount
that would be included in the parent’s consolidated financial statements, based on
the parent’s date of transition to IFRSs, if no adjustments were made for
consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which
the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is available to an associate or
joint venture that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a).

« IFRS 9 Amendments, Financial Instriments

The amendments clarify the fees an entity includes when it applies the 10 per
cent' in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability, an entity includes
only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's

behalf.



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.JS.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
Yeal ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Standards, inferpretations issued and effective for the corrent year (Continued)

e Annual improvements to IFRS 2018-2020 {Amendments to IFRS I, IFRS 9, IFRS
16 and IAS 41) (Continued)

« IFRS 16 Amendmenis, Leases

The amendment to illusirative example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from
the example the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements.

o A8 41 Amendments, Agriculture

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 1AS 4] for the
entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value under

IAS 41

These amendments had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

2.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments in issue not yet effective and not early
adopted:

Effective date

IAS 1 - Amendment Classification of Liabilitics as Current or

Non-current 1 January 2023
IFRS- 17 — New Insurance Contracts | January 2023
IAS | — Amendment &
IFRS practice statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
IAS 8- Amendment Definition of Accounting Estimate 1 January 2023
1AS 12- Amendment Deferred Tax related 1o Assets and

Liabilities arising from a from a single

transaction 1 January 2023
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
Amendments an Investor and an and its Associale or Indefinite effective

Joint Venture date

If applicable, the Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards and
interpretations when they become effective. The management anticipates that the
adoption of the above standards and interpretations in future periods may have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

1. BAsSISOF PREFPARATION

3.1 Going concern
The Group incurred loss of AED 143,847,098 for the current year compared to loss of
AED 102,738,529 in the previous year and the accumulated losses as at 31 December

2022 amounted to AED 87,523,797 which was offset against voluniary reserve as at
1] December 2022, The current liabilities exceeded the current assets by
AED 145,009,363, These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exits

that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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FuJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.5.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3

Sl

3.2

Basis OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED}
Going concern (Continued)

The major challenges during the year were the reduction in demand for cement and
clinkers and higher production cost due to tising coal and fuel prices. In response fo
these challenges, the Group's management was able to increase the rates of cement in the
local market and has staried using altemate burning media in place of coal. The
management is also exploring to enter other markets outside UAE to maximize the

capacity utilization,

Management believes that the above actions and the feasibility of future plans by the
Board of Directors will improve its ability 1o generate future profits and cash flows and
continue its operations in the foreseeable future. Hence, the accompanying consolidated
financial statemenis have been prepared on 2 going concern basis.

Statement of compliance

The Group's consolidated financial staiements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and applicable requirements of the UAE Federal
Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies.

1.1 Basis of measurement

3.4

3.5

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for land which has been measured on the basis of valuation.

Functional and presentation currency

The<e consolidated financial statements are presented in UAE Dirham (AED), which is
the Group's Functional Currency. The amounts in the consolidated financial statements
are rounded 1o the nearest UAE Dirham (AED).

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgment

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management 1o make judgment, estimates and assumplion that affect the application of
policies and reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, other
disclosures and disclosures of contingent liabilities.

The Group based its assumptions, judgments and estimates on parameters available when
the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumplions about future development, however, may change due 1o market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Such changes are reflected in the consolidated financial statements when

they ocour.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2022

15

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Use of estimates, assumptions and judgment (Continuwed)

Estimates, judgments and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the cstimates are
revised and in any fulure period affected,

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
management historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future
events that are believed to be reasoneble under circumstance.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments with significant risk of material adjustment in the
future year mainly comprise of the following :

Provision relating to contracts

The Group reviews all its arrangements on a regular basis 1o identify any arrangements
where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contracts exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under contract
reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penaltics arising from failure to fulfill it. The Group
cstimates any such provision based on the facts and circumstances relevant 1o the

contracts.

Determining the lease terms

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that
creale an economic incentive to exercise an exiension oplion, or nol exercise 2
termination option, Extension opiions (or periods alter termination eplions) are only
included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment for calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined afier considering the
current usage of the assets compared to full wilization capabilitics of the assets and
physical wear and tear. Group's management reviews the residual value and useful lives
annually.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment to assess impairment, if there is an
indication of impairment. In determining whether impairment losses should be reported
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Group makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indication that there is a reduction in the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, provision for impairment is made
where there is an identified loss event or condition which, based on previous experience,
is evidence of a reduction in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment.

-14-



FuJalrAaH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. Basis OF PREFPARATION (CONTINUED)
3.5 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgment (Continued)

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. When inventories
become slow-moving or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realizable value. For
individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis,
Amounts which are not individually significant but which are slow moving or obsolete,
are assessed collectively and provision is made according to inventories type and degree
of ageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Calculation of the quantity of inventory

The caleulation of closing stock quantitics of cerfain raw materials, semi-finished
products, buming media and finished goods requires the use of estimates. Al the end of
each reporting period, management appoints a surveyor to determines the volume of the
inventory which is used by management in a scientific formula by reference tw ils
estimated density, to arrive to the closing quantity. The inventory as reflected in the
accounting records, closely approximates the actual quantitics.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's management evaluate whether there are indicators that suggest non-
financial assets have suffered impairment in accordance with accounting policies stated
in note 4. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the fair value less
cost of disposal of the specific assct impaired.

Provision for expected credit loss “ECL"

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different
economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. Loss given default is an
estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to reccive, taking into
account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements. Probability of
default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of
the likelihood of default over a given lime horizon, the calculation of which includes
historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. Refer to note % for the
provision for the loss allowance for the year,

1.6 Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements incorporated the consolidated financial statements of
the parent company and entity controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when

» The Group has power over the investee,
e The Group is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee,

s The Group has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retumns.
-15-



FuJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.5.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.6

BASI5S OF PREFARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes 1o one or more of the three elements of controlled mentioned
above,

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts circumstances whether it has power over an investee,
including ;

s The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee.
= Rights arising from the other contractual arrangements.
& The Group's voting rights and potential voling rights.

Consolidation of 2 subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed during the year is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when Group
ceases 1o control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributable to the
owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of a subsidiary to bring
their accounting policies into line with the Group accounting policies.

All intragroup balances and income, equity and cash flows relating to transaciions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group interests and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Group.

The details of the subsidiary is as follows :
Yo ol Country of
Entity awnershi Pringipal activitfes incorporation
2022 2021

Fujairgh Cement Industries PISC FZE* 100 100 Ready mixed concrete UAE

manufaciuring

* The Establishment started its operation in March 2022,
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FuJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PLS.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDEDR 31 DECEMBER 2022

4.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are carried at their costvaluation less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment. Cost includes purchase cost
together with any incidental costs of acquisition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a scparate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future cconomic benefits associated
with the item and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of day to day service of property and equipment is expensed as incurred.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use in the manner intended by
management.

Estimated uscful lives

Years
Factory buildings and improvements 510 35
Factory civil structurcs ato 35
Plant and machinery 21035
Furniture and fixtures 2t0d
Vehicles and mobile plant 4107
Tools and equipment 2104
Quarry assets 6 1o 20

No depreciation is charged on land and capital work-in-progress. The depreciation
charge for each period is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate
at each reporting date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than estimated recoverable

amount,

Gain or loss arising on disposal of any item of property, plant and equipment (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, and the carrying amount of the
asset) is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Capital work-in-progress

Propertics in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes or for purposes not yet determined are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalized in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such propertics are
classified to the appropriate categorics of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the sume basis as
other property asscis, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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FuJalrall CEMENT INDUSTRIES PUS.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ExnED 3] DECEMBER 2022

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINVED)

4.2 Intangible assets

4.3

4.4

Intangible assets represents the tolal amounts paid towards sofiware and is carried at
cost less  accumulated amortization and  any  accumulated impairment  losses,
Amorization is calculated on straight line basis over a period of five vears from the
date they are available for usc.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position based on current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is :

~ Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

— Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

~ Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date or

~Cash and cash cquivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used o settle a
liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting date.

All other assers are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when :

— It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

— It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

=t is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reperting period; or

~There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting date.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Leases

The Group evaluates at the beginning of the lease agreement whether the contract is a
lease agreement or includes a rental arrangement. If the contract s wholly or partially
transferring the right to conirel the use of a specific asset from one party to another for
a specific period of time in exchange for a specific compensation or allowance, then the
Group recognizes the right (o use the assets and lease obligations with the exception of
short-term leases of one yvear or less and the leases for leased assets with low value. For
these leases, the Group recognizes lease payments as an operating expense on a straight
line basis over the term of the lease, unless another systematic basis further presents the
period of time in which the economic benefits from the leased assets are amortized.

Lease obligations

Lease obligations are recognized and measured initially at the present value of lease
payments that have not been paid on the commencement date of the lease confract, and
those payments are discounted using the inlerest rate implicil in the contract, and if it is
not known, then the Group uses the incremental borrowing interest rate.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
Lease obligations (Continued)

Unpaid lease payments include:

~ Fixed lease payments less any lease incentives receivable.

— Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, measured initially using the
index or rate at the start date of the lease.

~ The amount the lessee is expected to pay the lessor when there is a residual value
guaranteed in the lease agreement.

— The price of exercising buying options, if the lessee is reasonably certain of exercising
the options.

— Termination fines, if the lease reflects the exercise of the option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate component of the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
the interest on the lease obligation and by reducing the camrying amount to reflect the
lease payments paid.

The Group re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment 1o the
related right-of-use asscts) whenever:

— The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that lead to a change in the evaluation of the purchase option exercise, in which case
the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the
revised discount rate.

~ Rental pavments change duc to changes in an index or rate or change in expected
pavments under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the remal liabilities are re-
measured by discounting the adjusted remtal payments using an unchanged discount
rate (unless the rental payments change due to the change in the floating interest rate.
In this case, the adjusted discount rate is used.)

- The lease is amended and the lcase amendment is not counted as a separate lease
contract, in which case the lease liabilities are re-measured based on the modified
lease term by discounting the modified lcase payments using the modified discount
rate at the date of modification.

Right-of-use assels

Right-of-use assets include the initial measurement of the comesponding lease liability,
lease paymenis made on or before the inception day, minus any lease incentives
received and any initial direct costs subsequently measured minus accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.
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4.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets {Continued)

When the Group incurs a commitment to the costs of dismantling and removing a
leased asset, restoring the site on which it is located, or restoring the asset to the
required condition under the terms of the lease contract, the provision is recognized and
measured in accordance with 1AS (37) and to the extent that the costs relate (o the righi-
ol-use assets, the costs are included in related right-of-use assets, unless these costs are
incerred to produce inventorics.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the contract term or the
uselul hife of the specified assel.

If the lease contract transfers ownership of the underlying asset or right-of-use cost
reflects that the Group expects 1o exercise the purchase option, then the related use
value is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. Depreciation starts on
the date of commencement of the lease agreement.

Right-to-use assels are presented as a separate component in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The Group applies 1AS (36) 1o determine whether the right to use value has decreased
and calculates any impairment loss identified as described in the “property, plant and
equipment” policy.

As a practical expedient, JFRS 16 allows a lessce nol to separate the non-leased
components, and instead any lease contract and associated non-lease components are
counted as a single arrangement. The Group did not use this practical expedient. For
contracts that contain a leasing component and one or more leasing or non-leasing
components, the Group allocates consideration in the contract o each leasing
companent based on the independent relative price of the leasing component and the
total sum of the single price of the non-leasing componenis.

The Group as Lessor

Operating leases

The rental income from the operating the lease is recognized on a consistent basis and
evenly over the period of the related contract. The initial direct costs incurred by the
entity when negotiating and preparing the contract are added to the value in which the
lcased asset appears in the consolidated statement of financial position, and they are
recognized as expenses during the contract period in the same way that is adopted for
lease income. Leased assets are depreciated under operating lease contracts, based on
the same depreciation policies that the entity follows for similar assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4.5

4.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group asscsses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asscl’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual assel, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of these from other assets or Group's assets. When the carrying amount of
an assel or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
writien down to its recoverable amoant.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the assel. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is uvsed, These calculations are
corrohorated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise (o a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equitly instrument of another entity.

Financial asscts

= [nitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, al initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortized cost (AC), fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI), and
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets at
initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characicristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial
assct at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the fransaction price determined under IFRS 13,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair
value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI)" on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Groups business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to gencrate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
linancial assets, or both,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

= Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownerzhip.

» Subscquent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four

categorics:

- Financial assels at amortized cost

~ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) with
recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

- Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
{OCT) with no recyeling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition {equity
instruments)

~  Financial assets ai fair value through profit or loss

As of reporting date, that the Group coniracted with only the financial assets a1
amoriized cost,

# Financial asseis at amortized cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met

~ The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order 1o collect contractual cash flows and,

— The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates o cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the efTective interest
(EIR} method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit
ar loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortized cost includes trade reccivables, other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
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4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.6 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

« Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to reeeive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
arc possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, imespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Group applics a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment,

In cerlain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before tazking into account any eredit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
arrangement provision of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Financial liabilities can be subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, with interest cxpense recognized on an effective yield basis, or at fair
value through profit or loss.

As of reporting date, that the Group contracted with only the fnancial liability at
amoriized cosL

« Financial liabilities at amortized cost

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortized cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

The Group's financial liabilities at amortized cost includes trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and bank borrowings.
-23-
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4,

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.4

4.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

= Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are subsiantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the
consolidated statement of financial position if there is currently enforceable legal nght
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention 1o seitle on a net basis, to

realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is determined
using the weighted average basis. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditures based on the normal
operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Spare parts and others inventories cost compnises of their purchase price.

Provision is made where necessary for obsolete, slow-moving and damaged items

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing consolidated statement of cash flows (Exhibit D) cash and
cash eguivalents comprise cash in hand and unrestricted balances with banks which are

subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade payables

These amounts represcnt liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior o
the end of the financial year which are unpaid and the amounts are unsecured. Trade and
other payables arc presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months afier the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4.

4.11

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are recognised

when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operaling losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
nferest expense,

Employees benelits

Employees’ end of service benefits is caleulated in accordance with U A E. Labour Law
requirements.

Retirement pension and social benefit scheme for the U.A.E citizens are made by the
Group in accordance with Federal Law.

4.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between proceeds
{net of transaction costs) and the redemption vafue is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
a5 transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down oceurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fec is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as other income or finance costs.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.13 Borrowings (Continued)

4.14

4.15

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues cquity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or pant of the liability (debt for equity swap), a
gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, which
is measured as the difference between the camying amount of the financial liability and
the fair value of the equity instruments issued. Borrowings are classificd as cumment
liabilitics unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability

for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifving assets, which arc assels that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the asscts are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs arc recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period which they are incurred.

Revenue Mrom contracts with customers balances

Confract assers

A contract asset is the right to the consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred 1o
the customer. If the Group performs by transferring the goods or service to the customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment 15 due, a contract asset is recognized for the

eamed consideration that is conditional,

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amount due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. The accounting policies of financial assets in financial instruments
paragraph details the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of trade receivables.

Contract liabilitiex
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services (0 a customer for which the

Group has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
custorner pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services 1o the customer, &
contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is duc (whichever is
carlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the

coniract.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recervable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns and rebates.

Centract revenue

The Group recognize revenue from contracts with customers based on the five step
model set out in IFRS 15.
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4.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Coniract revenue (Continued)

Step 1: Identify the contract with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement
between two or more partics that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out
the criteria for each of those rights and obligations.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation in
a contract is @ promise to transfer a good or service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: Transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods and services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price (o the performance obligations in the contract: For
a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the
transaction price to cach performance obligation in an amount that depicts the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue as and when the entity satisfics a performance obligation.

The Group recognizes revenue over time if any one of the following criteria is met:

e The customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs; or

» The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

« The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance obligation
completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue s
recognized at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods
and services. it creates a contract assel based on the amount of consideration eamed by
the performance. Where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds
the amount of revenue recognized, this gives rise Lo a contract liability,

» Sale of goods
Revenue is recognized for the performance obligation when control over the
corresponding goods is transferred to the customers. The timing of revenue
recognition of this performance obligation is at peint in time for sale of goods when
the goods are delivered 1o the customers.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4,17 Foreign currencies

4.18

4.19

4.20

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 10 UAE Dirhams at the foreign
exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabihities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date
are translated to UAE Dirhams at the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between the
amortized cost in UAE Dirhams at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective
interest and payments during the year, and the amortized cost in the foreign currency
translated at the spot exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non monetary assets and liabilitics that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated to UAE Dirhams at the spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair
value is determined. Non monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the spol exchange rate the date of the
transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recopnized in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as liability in the consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Shareholders.

Value added tax
Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except :

e When VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, VAT is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the cxpense items, as applicable.

« When reccivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:

s The profit attributable to sharcholders of the Group, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares,

s by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares if any.
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FusalraH CEMENT INpDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.21 Contingent linbilities
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending on whether some unceriain
future events occur, or they are present obligations but payments are not probable or the

amounts cannot be measured reliably, Contingent habilities are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Fusainad CEMENT INDUSTRIES PLJ.5.C

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR Expep 31 DECEMBER 2022

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

b} Land mentioned above of AED. 34,997,500 is stated at valuation by Land and Property
Management — Dibba Municipality - Govermment of Fujaireh and the difference
amounting 1o AED. 34,747,500, was credited 1o revaluation reserve (Exhibit A).

¢) Part of the factory buildings and improvements, factory civil structures and plant and
machinery are constructedferected on leased land obtained from the Dibba Municipality —

Government of Fujairah.

d) There is a registered chattel morigage (being exccuted) over the Waste Heat Recovery
based captive power plant expansion project included in plant and machinery mentioncd
above and an assipnment of insurance policy covering the project in favour of the bank
against bank borrowings (Mote 17).

e) Insurance policy covering movable assets is assigned in favor of a bank against bank
borrowings (Note 17).

f) Commercial mortgage over thermal power plant included in plant and machinery
mentioned above, assignment of insurance policies covering the cement factory and
thermal power plant and assigniment of leasehold rights over the land on which the thermal
power plant is located are provided as securitics against bank borrowings (Note 17},

o} There is a registered mongage and assignment of insurance policy over specific machinery
upgraded (Note 17) included in plant and machinery menticned above.

h} Cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that was still in use, at the end of
the reporting period amounted to AED. 354,785,226 (2021 : AED. 353,478,614).

. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
The movement of the right-of-use assets are summarized as follows :

2022 2021
AED AED
Cost :
Al 1 January 138,897,679 132,403,211
Additions during the year 315,953 6,494,457
Balance at 31 December 139,213,632 138,897,679
Aceumulated Depreciation :
Al 1 January 29252 204 18,978,069
Charged for the vear 10,182,875 10,274,135
Balance at 31 December 39,435,079 20,252 204
Net book Value at 31 December — Exhibit A 99,778,553 109,645,475
mEEL o= |
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PLILS.C

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

This item consists of the following :

Cost &
At 1 January 2021

At 31 Diecember 2021
Transfer from capilal work-in-progress

Balance nf 31 December 2022

Accumulaied amortization :
At 1 January 2021
Charged for the year

At 31 December 2020
Charged for the year

Ealance at 31 December 2022

Met book Yalue @
Al 31 December 2022 — Exhibit A

At 31 Decomber 2021 - Exhibit A

. INVENTORIES

a) This item consists of the following :

Software

AED

249,517

49,517

38,795

2022 2l

AED AED
Raw materials 16,056,468 I 7,006,665
Semi-finished products 56,671,485 66,175,823
Finished products 3,383,164 3,108,902
Total TH, 111,117 86,291,390
Spare parts 126,971.880 128,031,829
Allowance for slow-moving spare parts — MNote Ak (26,816,605) (20,702,113)
Mel 100,155,275 107,328 716
Burning media 75099758 73,212,154
Bags and packing material 735,336 722,634
Total 75 835,004 73,934,788
Goods-in-transit 77,681 19 488 804
Total = Exhilsit A 282 179,167 287,044,698

Insurance policy over inventories is assigned against bank borrowings (Mote 17}

=17



Fusaliat CEMENT INpusTRIES PLS.C

KOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

8. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

b) The movement in allowance for slow-moving sparc parts during the year arc as follows ;

Balance a1 1 January
Additions during the year

Balance at 31 December — Note B{a)

2022 2021
AED AED
20,702,113 20,702,113

611 ]"'.492 —
26,816,605 20,702,113

=—a===—===

¢} Inventories have been reduced by AED. 18,275,313 (2021 ;: AED. 5,568,397) 25 a result
of the write-down to net realizable value. This write-down was recognized as expenses

(Exhibit B}

% TRADE RECEIVARLES

a) This item consists of the following :

Trade receivables

Provision for impairment Joss of trade receivables
= Mote 9(c)

Net amount = Exhibit A

Coverage :
Trade receivables against BG & L/C's
Trade receivables

Total

b) Trade receivables include :

2022 2021
AED AED
113.695970 135,942,404
(52712,662)  (41,638,030)
60983308 94,304,374
31940545 45,713,677
81746425 90128727

113,695,970

135,942,404

« 7 customers (2021 : AED. 5 customers) representing 78% (2021 : 78%) of the trade

receivables,
« AED. 654 Million {2021

e Trade receivables are assipned against bank borrowings (Mote 17).

=} 3=

- AED. 63.7 Miilion) which is past due of this
AED. 3.6 Million (2021 : AED. 4.8 Million) is secured.



FraslraH CEMENT INpUSTRIES PIS.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2022

9.

e

TRrADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

¢) The details of movement in provision for impairment loss of trade reccivables
during the year are as follows ;

2022 2021
AED AED
Balance at 1 January 41,638,000 26,552,172
Additions to provision 11,212,052 15,095,491
Written off (137,420) (9,633)
Bulance at 31 December — Note 9{n) 52,712,662 41,638,030
el ==

The average credit period for the trade receivables is 112 days (2021 : 119 days).
Na interest is charged on trade receivables in the normal course of business.

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated
using a provision matrix by reference o past default experience of the debtor and an
analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the cuslomers including bank guarantees and letiers of credit provided, general
scanomic conditions of the industry in which the debiors operate and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,

There has been no change in the estimation technigques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period.

The Group writes-off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group's
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss expericnce does not show
significantly different loss patlermns for different customer segments, the provision for
loss allowance based on past due staws is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer base.

d) The details of risk profile and age wise analysis of trade receivables are as follows

il
Cross Expecied Expected
{rade receivables  Credit joss

AED AED %
hiﬂ?dtmﬂﬂhhﬂlﬂ.ﬂﬂhﬂnk 31,940 545 =
guarantees and keiters of credit
Umsecmred trade receivables B T46.418 &1 TI 1662 65%
Teial = Nate Wn & ) TIAAFE570 £3,712 662




FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.ILS.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

d) The details of risk profile and age wise analysis of trade receivables are as follows
{Continued)

2021
Gross Expected Expected
trade receivables  Credit loss Credit loss ralg
AED AED %
Secured trade receivables against bank 45,713,677 s as
guarantees and letters of credit
Unsecared frade receivables 00 228,727 41,638,030 A6%
Total - Mote 9a & <) 135,942,404 41,638,030
Mot past Less ihan 180 18 -360 Muare than
dug days dnys 360 davs Total
AED AED AED AED AED
31 December 1022 48,294,544 34807106 IS8, 263 58293 447 113695570
31 December 2021 72243635 14350996 S 102766 44245017 135,942,404
e T - mr - w
Geographical Analysis
The geographical analysis of trade receivables are as follows :
2022 2021
AED AED
Within LLAE 92,318,637 06,601 418
Outside UAE = G.CC 20,766,220 18,439,454
Other countries 611,113 20,841,532
Total 113,695,97 135,942,404
|- mr————_— L
10.  ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
This item consists of the following :
2022 2021
AED AED
Prepayments 858,554 (83,781
Advances 1o suppliers 1,889,916 2,228.715
Other receivables 5,417,960 5,661,850
Total - Exhibit A 8,166,430 8,574,346
S ———— e — ] SN
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FuJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ik

132.

14,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
This item consists of the following :

2022 2021
AED AED
Cash in hand 117,415 114,651
Bank balances - Current accounts 1,206,139 608,455
Total — Exhibit A & D 1,323,554 723,106
SHARE CAPFITAL
This item consists of the following :
2022 2021
AED AED

Authorized share capital is AED. 355,865,320 ordinary

share of AED. 1 each fully paid - Exhibit A & C 355,865,320 355,865,320

e

=

STATUTORY RESERVE

This item consists of the following :

2022 2021

AED AED
Balance at | January 161,750,412 161,750,412
Balance at 31 December - Exhibit A & C 161,750,412 161,750,412

In accordance with UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, an amount equal to 10% (2021 :
10% in accordance with UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 and its amendments) of the
profit of each year is to be appropriated to a statutory reserve, Transfer mav be
discontinued when the reserve reaches 50% of the paid-up capital. This reserve is not
available for distribution except in circumsiances stipulated by the law.

VOLUNTARY RESERVE
a) The details of movement in voluntary reserve during the year arc as follows

2022 2021

AED AED
Balance at 1 January 222,536,002 222 536,002
Offsetting of accumulated losses — Note 14(c) (87,523,797) -
Balance at 31 December - Exhibit A & C 135,012,205 222 536,002

b} In prior years, 10% of the profits was appropriated to a voluntary reserve, As per

Article 59 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the voluntary reserve may
be used according 10 a resolution of the Board of Directors in the aspects that achieve

the interests of the Company,

¢) The Board of Dircctors resolved 1o offset the losses and/or the accumulated losses of
the Company against the voluntary reserve as at 31 December 2022 and thereafier in

the future in the event that the Company is reporting losses.
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15. EMPLOYEES END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The details of movement in this item during the year are as follows

Balance at 1 January
Current service cost
Settlements during the year

Balance at 31 December - Exhibit A

[6., LEASE LIABILITIES

2022
AED

14,298,111
1,379,860
(2,596,650)

13,081,321

L e

2021
AED

14,341,137
1,114,706
(1,157,732)

14,298,111

—— .

Lease liahilities represent the long term lease plets of land from Government af Fujairah.
The details of movements in this item during the year are as follows :

Balance at | January

Additions during the year
Finance cost on lease liabilities
Payments during the vear

Balance at 31 December

MNon-Current -Exhibit A
Current -Exhibit A

Total

17. BaNK BORROWINGS
a) Bank-term borrowings

i) This item consists of the following :

Balance a1 | January
Add: Received during the vear
Less: Repaid during the year

Balance a1 31 December

Mon-Current portion — Note 17{c)(i}
Current portion = Note 1 7{c){ii}

Total- Note 17(a)(i)
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2022
AED

143,242,333
315,953
4,137,363
(6,140,710)

141,554,939

112,705,265
28,849,674

141,554,939

—

2022
AED

253,585,059
44,009,878
(27,756,775)

269,838,162

234,028,621
35,799,541

269,838,162

2021
AED

138,403,752
6,494,457
4,458,969

(6,114,845)

143,242,333
T -
130,202,549

13.039,784

143,242,333

e

2021
AED

342,850,828

(89,265.769)
253,585,059

oI B

227,643,871
25,941,188

253,585,059

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
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— —_— —

17. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINLUED)

a) Bank-term borrowings (Continued)

i} Break-up of bank-term borrowings are as follows :

Loan Maturitv date 2022 2021
AED AED
Term loan 1 January 2030 48,248,494 53,240,681
Term loan 2 December 2028 13,187,698 14,836,699
Term loan 3 Maovember 2026 92 807,679 101,807,679
Term loan 4 December 2028 74,400,000 83,700,000
Term loan § MNovember 2023 6,194,291 --
Term loan 6 December 2025 35,000,000 -
Total — Note 17(a)(i) 269,838,162 253 585,059
Term loan 1

During 2017, the Group entered into an Islamic financing arrangement (Tjarah) from a
bank operating in the United Arab Emirates for AED. 114,445,987 1o seitle the existing
term loan. During November 2017, the outstanding balance of AED. 101,240,681 were
rescheduled to be repaid in 22 equal quarterly installments of AED. 3,000,000 each
commenced in January 2018 and ending in April 2023 and the remaiming amount of
AED. 35.240,681 to be settled in July 2023, During 2021, the existing Jjarah balance has
been refinanced by the same bank 1o be repaid in 31 equal quarterly installments of
AED, 1,664,063 commencing from April 2022 and the remaining amount of
AED, 1,654,728 10 be settled in January 2030.

Term loan 2

During 2017, the Group entered into an Islamic financing arrangement {Mudaraba) from
a bank operating in the United Arab Emirates for AED. 30,000,000 of which
AED. 21,893,199 was deawn down, to finance the upgrade of the raw mill/slag grinding
project. Out of the outstanding amount of AED. 19,407,168, the Group paid
AED. 54,391 in January 2020 and the balance is scheduled to be repaid in 27 equal
quarterly installments of AED. 716,769 each commencing in April 2020 and ending in
August 2026, In 30 Junc 2021, the cutstanding amount of AED. 15768929 is
rescheduled to be repaid in 30 quarterly installments commencing from July 2021 and
ending December 2028.

Term loan 3

During 2017, the Group was sanctioned this loan from a bank operating in the
United Arab Emirates for 8 maximum amount of AED. 209,630,004 of which
AED. 209,607,679 was drawn down, to refinance the existing liabilities with other banks.
Repayment of this loan is in 26 equal quarterly installments of AED. 7,700,000 each
commenced in May 2018 and ending in August 2024 and the remaining amount of
AED. 9407,679 to be settled in Movember 2024. In September 2021, the outstanding
amount of AED. 101,807,679 is rescheduled to be repaid in 20 quarterly installments
commeneing from February 2022 and ending in November 2026. In November 2022, the
outstanding amount of AED 94,307,679 is rescheduled to be repaid in 17 quarterly
installment commencing from November 2022 and ending in November 2026,
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17. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
a) Bank-term borrowings (Continued)

ii) Break-up of bank-term borrowings are as follows : (Continued)

The Installments details are below :

- | installment of AED. 1,500,000
4 installments of AED. 2,000,000
3 installments of AED. 3,500,000
1 installment of AED. 6,000,000
3 installments of AED. 6,500,000
1 installment of AED. 14,000,000
3 installments of AED, 8,703,000
1 installment of AED. 8,698,679

L]

Term loan 4

During 2019, the Group was sanctioned and entered into an [slamic financing
arrangement  (Mudaraba) from a bank operating in Umnted Arab Emirates for
AED. 100,000,000 1o settle existing liabilitics with other banks. The loan is repayable in
28 quarterly installments, commencing in March 2020 and ending in December 2026.
In June 2021, the outstanding amount of AED, 91,000,000 is rescheduled to be repaid
in 31 quarterly installments commencing from June 2021 and ending in December

2028,
The installment details are as below :

2 installments of AED. 2,000,000

| installment of AED. 3,300,000

% installments of AED. 2,325,004
20 installments of AED, 3,255,(HK)

Term loan §

During 2022, the Group has entered into a loan agreement from a bank operating in the
United Arab Emirates for an amount of AED. 9009878 to settle the existing
outstanding overdraft facility with the same bank. The loan is repayable in 16 cqual
monthly installments commencing from August 2022 and ending in November 2023.

Term loan 6

During the year 2022, the Group was sanctioned and entered into a loan agreement from
a bank operating in the United Arab Emirates for an amount of AED. 35,000,000 10
seitle the existing short term loan and trust receipts with the same bank. The loan is
repayable in 12 quarterly installments commencing from March 2023 and ending in

December 2025.

The installment details are as bellow :

4 installments of AED. 1,000,000
4 installment of AED. 2,500,000
3 installments of AED. 5,000,000
1 installment of AED. 6,000,000
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e

17. Bank BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

b) Other bank borrowings
This item consist of the following :

Trust receipts
Short term loans

Overdrafis
Tatal — Note 17 {c)(ii)

¢} Details of bank-term borrowings are as follows ¢

i} Non-current portion

Thiz item consist of the following :

In the second year
In the third 1o fifth year
After five year

Total = Exhibit A

ii} Current portion

This item consist of the following :

Bank-term borrowings - Wote 17(a)(1)
Other bank borrowings — Note 17(b)

Total - Exhibit A

Total Bank borrowings

iii) Bank borrowings are secured by:

2022 2021
AED AED
152,244,403 [ 12,403,242
110,000,000 135,000,000
31,919,182 32,383,888
294,163,585 279,787,130
2022 2021
AED AED

45,484,250 27,605,250
155,260,429 147,760,429
30,293,942 52,278,192
234,038,621 227,643,871
2022 2021
AED AED
35,799,541 25,941,188
294,163,585 279, 781130
329,963,126 305,728,118
264,001,747 533,372,189
— T wi. SS===T"=

Registered charge over Thermal Power Plant (including machinery).
Registered chattel mongage (1o be executed) over the Waste Heat Recovery

based captive power plant expansion project

«  Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 4374 million covering factory on a

pari passu basis.

»  Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 236.9 million covering the Thermal

Power Plant on a pari passu basis.

o Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 124.4 million covering the Waste

Heat Recovery based captive power plant expansion project.

«  Assignment of insurance policies covering moveable asscts on pari passu basis
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17. Bank BORROWINGS [CONTINUED)

¢} Details of bank-term borrowings are as follows : (Continued)

iii) Bank borrowings are sceured by: (Continued)

o Assignment of lcaschold rights (between the Company & Dibba Municipality)

aver the land on which the Thermal Power Plant is located.

»  Assipnment of insurance policy over inventories on pari passu basis.

s General assignments of trade receivables in favor of the bank.

+ Registered mortgage and assignment of insurance policy over specific

machinery upgraded.
#  Promissory nole,

|8, TRADE AND OTHER PAYVABLES
This items consists of the following

2022 202

AED AED
Trade payables 125,639,315 127,621,216
Dividends payable 3,944,983 3,971,870
Advanced received from customers 711,703 285,600
Accrucd expenscs 4,948,265 13,164,297
Acerued interest payables 2,811,657 2,419,451
Cihers Th4, 945 320,417
Total 138,620,868 147,782,950
= == -
Man-Current = Exhibit A 29.971.8406 15,270,312
Current = Exhibit & 108,849,022 132,512,638
Total 138,820,568 147,782,950

19. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various transactions with related
parties. Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel
of the Group and entities contrelled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such

parties. The prices and terms of these tran sactions are agreed with the Group’s management.

s Al the statement of consolidated financial position date, balances of related partics are as

follows :
2022
AED
Balances due from related parties
{included in trade receivables) 1,820,532
Balances due 1o related pariies
(included in trade and other payables) 242,432

41~

a0zl
AED

1, 104,667

4,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR EXDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

19. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

e The following are the details of significant related party transactions :

2022 2021

AED AED
Sales 3,681,377 2,503,376
Purchases/service contracts T18,664 1,166,490
Construction of property, plant and equipment 671,336 633,950

« The remuneration, salaries and other benefits of key management stafl during the year
are as follows ;

2022 2021
AED AED
key management staff salaries and other related benefits 3,183 488 3,855,995

0. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement assumes that the asset or liability is exchanged in an orderly
iransaction between market participants to sell the assets or transfer the liability at the
measurement date under current market conditions.

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to scll the asset or transfer the
liahility takes place either :

« [n the principal market for the asset or liability; or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability,
The Group must have access to the principal (or most advantagcous) market at the
measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markel
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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20. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

o

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and trade and gther receivables.
Financial liabilitics consist of trade and other payables, leasc liabilities and bank
borrowings.

Fair value of financial instruments carried af amortized cost

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised at amortized cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Risk MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherited in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of
ongoing identification, measurcment and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other
controls. Operational risks are an incvitable consequence of being in the business.

The Group is expased to a variety of financial risks included : capital risk, market risk
{foreign currency risk and interest rate risk) eredit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimize the effects of these risks through internal reports which
analyze the risk to achieve its risk management function and monitor risks and reviews
policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are o safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a poing concern in order to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and 1o maintain an optimal capital structure W reduce the cost of
capital, In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amaunt of dividends paid to sharcholders, retum capital 10 sharcholders, issue new
shares or s¢ll assets.

21.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Mows of a financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk. The objective of market risk manapement is to manage and control
market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while aptimizing the return on risk.

) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign cxchange ratc.

The Group's activities are not exposed to the financial risks of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates because substantially all the financial assets and liabilities
are denominated in United Arab Emirates Dirhams (AED) or US Dollars to which

the AED is pegged.
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21, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

21.2 Market risk (Continued)
B) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk resultant from its borrowings. The risk is
managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating interest rates
balance at the start of the financial year.

Details of financial assets and liabilitics cxposed to interest rate risk as al
31 December 2022 are as follows
Effegtive inieresd rate

2033 2021

Hask loans 1.75% pa + J months EJEOR - 3% pa + 3 months E1BOR -
IRS enecnted al 2,000 poa (fixed) 4 1R85 executed ab 3.40% p.a ~
Muating on } months ETBOR wiih g o cover EIROR
sirike 1.75% p.a
1.5% p.a + 3 monibs EIFOR - L.5% pa+ 3 monibs EIRGH -
[RS executed at 3 45% pa 4 IRS execuled af 3. T0% p.a 4
ta cover E1BOR in cover EIHOR
1 mosths + 1,5% pa + EIROR 3 mweeths + 2. 25% 10 2.5% p.a+ EIBOR
1 month 4+ | 5% pa+ EIBOR =

Shorl-term loans 1 emonth ETEOH + 1,75% p.a | month EIBOR = 1, 75% pa
£.5% 10 T.5% po 55% 10 T pa

Crverdralis 1 menth EIROR + 1.75% to 1.50% pa | month EIBCR + 1.75% 10 2.50% pa
3 meniks EIBOR + 3% pa 3 montks EIRCR + 3.5% pa

Trosl receifil | monih EIBOE = 1.78% to L30% p.a | cnonth EIBOS + 1,75% to 2.30% p.a
3 moniks EIROR + 3% pa 3 moniés EIBOR + I pa
B menils EIROR + 1,75% pa & manths EIBOR + 1.75% pa

21.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group, if a customer or counterparly 10 a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from
cash fMows from financial assets recorded at amortized cost such as cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables and due from related parties,

The Group trade with recognized, creditworthy parties, The Group’s policy that all
customers are analyzed for creditworthiness on eredit terms and are subject to monitor
the receivable balances of customers on an ongoing basis, that receivable balances are
the maximum exposure to credit risk relating to trade reccivables and due from related

partics,

The Group applies IFRS ¢ simplified approach 1o measure expected credit loss (ECL)
by grouping all financial assets based on shared credit rnisk characteristics and days past
due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of that business transaction
and the cormesponding historical eredit loss experienced within this period.

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and future information on macro
economic factors affecting the abilities of the customers to settle their receivable
balances.
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21,

21.3

21.4

RiISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

With respect to eredit risk arising from other financial assets such as cash and cash
equivalents including deposits arising from default of counter party to limit that credit
risk, the Group's cash is placed with banks of repute. Management is confident that it
does not result in any credit risk to the Group as the banks are major banks operating in
UAE.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with its financial liabilities at maturity date. The Group monitors

its risk to shortage of funds using a cash flow model. This tool considers the maturity
of financial assets and projected cash flows from operation and capital projects.

The Group objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank borrowings.

The details of maturity dates of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
as follows ;

As at 31 December 2022 ;

Lrss than From 3 months Above
three monthy  loo F 1-5 years Syrars Toul
AED AED AED AED AED
Fimancial Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 1.323.554 - - - 1323554
Trade receivabibes 28,291,072 31692256 - - 60,953 M8
Otker recetvahle 199 L4117 661 - - £417.560
Total 10,614,925 38,009,897 - w2 67,724,822
Financial Linhilitics
Bank borrowings 210256475 119,704,651 203, 744679 20,293,942 Sk 0L, THT
Trade and other pavables 1483577 105,683,741 20971847 - 138,109,165
Lease lishilities 165,450 1B 664,244 63,763 464 48,941,781 141,554,950
Tatal 21LHT5482 154074636 297 480,010 TII5, T2 H4.3, 665 551
As at 3] December 2021 :
Less than From 3 morths Above
ilree months 1o oome yoar 1-5 vears 3 yens Tedal
AED AED AED AED AED

Fimancial Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 723, 106 - -- - TR, 106
Trade receivables 55925 54 I7.17E B3 s - Q4 304 374
Ohiher roocivable s 5,661,850 - - S061 23
Tousl o A 43,040, 684 - . 100 ERD 53
Funareial Lizhilites
Bark bomowings 145 B46, 505 156 021,723 175,365,679 L2.27R. 192 533,372 189
Trade and other payables - 132226939 152700302 - 147,407,251
Lcase Habilitles - 13,038,784 40,294,530 G5 0RO 9 143,242,333
Taotal 145 840,595 JFZ, 148 446 20,930,521 122,086,211 BZ4.100,773
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22. REVENUE
This items consists of the following :
2022 2021
AED AED
Revenue recognized af point in time
Sales :
Within LAE 144,500,314 111,857,489
Outside UAE-GCC 61,833,255 67,362,164
(hher countries 168,243,653 240,758,255
Total — Exhibit B 374,577,222 419,977,908
23, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
This item consists of the following :
2022 2021
AED AED
Transporiation expenses 7,358,038 24,821,137
Exporl expenses 2,764,128 26,880,697
Salaries and related benefits 1,557,417 1.617.761
Yehicle expenses 2,447 26,150
Business promaolion 5,000 10,000
Toll fees and charpes 199,537 72,527
Oihers 217,372 [49.278
Total — Exhibit B 12,103,939 53,577,550
24, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
a) This item consisis of the following -
2022 2021
AED AED
Salaries and related benefits 6,384,999 6,826,739
Insurance 359,388 510,763
Legal, visa, professional and related expenses 1,837,679 1,890,340
Social contributions — Note 24(b) 82,865 [,021,602
Short-term lease expenscs 636,222 716,406
Utilities 381,262 297,792
Telephone and communication 364,609 363,174
Travelling and entertainment 53,950 26,918
Repairs and maintenance 260,057 177,115
Medical expenses 1,449,361 1,265,506
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 128,494 785,102
Cithers 214,793 397,780
Total - Exhibit B 12,153,679 14,279,639

b} Social contributions mentioned above compromise AED. Wil (2021
AED. 1,000,000) paid to Fujairah Foundation for regions development and
AED. 82,865 (2021 : AED. 21,602) to the recognized institutions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

25. FACTORY COSTS DURING STOPPAGE

Factory costs during stoppage of AED. 9,460,660 (Exhibit B) represent the unallocated
fixed production overheads incurred when the factory was shut down completely
temporarily during December 2022.

26. OTHER INCOME

This items consists of the following ;

2022 2021
AED AED
Foreign exchange income 501,063 30,600
Insurance claim ncome 687,170 =
Sale of scrap - 417,715
Miscellancous income 2,866,714 1,203,024
Total = Exhibit B 4,054,947 1.651,339
27. BASIC L.OSS PER SHARE
This items consists of the following :
2022 2021
Loss for the year (AED) (143,847,098) (102,738,529
Weighted average number of shares (Share) 355,865,320 355,865,320
Basic loss per share (AED) - Exhibit B {0.404) {0.289)

28, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/COMMITMENTS

i) Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilitics of the Group as at the consolidated statement of financial

position date amounted to AED. Nil (2021: AED. 3,897,143) representing letters of
credit,

i) Commitments
Commitments of the Group as at the consolidated statement of financial position date

are a5 follows
2022 2021
AED AED
Commitments for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment 497,817 3,269,632

29, COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparatives have been reclassified to comply with those of current year

presentation.
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FCI contribaetion (or 2022 to local commuanity development and safeguarding of the environment.

Creneral Information,
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In light of the increasing importance of applying governance in economic activity, the
members of the Board of Directors of the company were keen to implement the highest
standards of corporate governance by reviewing and following up on the company's
governance framework and ensuring its integrity in order to achieve better returns for
shareholders and the sustainability of the company's business for the long term. The
company's corporate governance framework is based on regulations and the laws in force
in the United Arab Emirates (Federal Law No. 32/2021 regarding commercial companies
and the authority chairman resolution no. (3/R.M) of 2020 concerning the approval of the Joint
Stock Companies Govermnance Guide and its amendments.) The Board was keen to ensure
efficient performance in the decision-making process, and the Board allocated sufficient
time to ensure that the company's strategy and vision are In line with the shareholders'
expectations.

The Board of Directors conducts evaluations of its performance and the performance of
its committees on an annual basis, presenting the results in the form of a report that
includes recommendations for improving performance when necessary, in addition to a
follow-up action plan.

Fujairah Cement Industries’ compliance with the rules and standards of governance and
their application mainly contributes to directing and monitoring the companies' business
at the highest level in order to ensure the achievement of its objectives and to meet the

necessary standards of responsibility, integrity, and transparency.
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The Beard of Directors sought to provide good leadership, strategic oversight, an
appropriate control environment, commitment to integrity and responsibility in the
implementation of all activities, and the application of the highest standards of
governance as a basis for fulfilling its responsibilities towards the company.

The application of the governance system with its advantages contributed to leading
change and restructuring. This promotes improved performance and continuity, reduces
risks, and supports accountability and transparency. The company has committed itself
to apply the rules of disclosure and transparency in order to enhance trust, in accordance
with the rules and standards that it follows in its practice of the concepts of good
management and principles of governance, and this guarantees the preservation of the
company’s interests and the protection of shareholders' rights. Governance practices are
applied in light of the regulations and Instructions of the competent authorities. This is to
improve the level of administrative organization and financial control due to the extreme
importance of this in protecting the financial system from crises and providing protection
for shareholders, as well as what is related to enhancing transparency, which is of utmost
importance to the company's shareholders.

The Board of Directors of the company applies the authority chairman reselution no. {3/R.M)
of 2020 concemning the approval of the Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide and its

amendments.
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Name Relation/title | Owned shares | Totalsell | Total purchase
in31/12/2022 | processes processes
Sheikh, Mohamad Bin Hamad Saif Al Shargi Chalrman Mil Hil Mil
Mr. Mohamed Ghaith Al Moheirbi Vice-chairman il Wil Nil
Mr. Abdul Ghafour Hashem Behroozian Board member 17849 Mil Wil
Mr. Mohamed Sharief habib Mohammed . _
Rafeea Alawadhi Board member il Mil Nil
Mr. Fahd Ahmved Abdulla Al Shaer Board member il il Nil
Mr. Saced Mobarak Al Zakhomy Board member Nil Wil il
Mr. Waleed Abdulaziz Fagesh Board member Wil il Ml
M. Abadulatif Saad Abdulatif Al Dousari Board member Kil Nil Mil
Mr. Mohamed Saeed Al Douisan Board member 63,250 Nil Wil
Mr. Ehaled Abdulla Hussein Abdulla Al Fadala | Board member il Mil Mil
Hr.__ﬁad_ﬁh:lulla Al Hanian Board member pil Mil Nil

The transactions of the board of directors in the securities as per article [14) of the
authority board of directors resolution no (2] of 2001 concerning the regulations as to
trading, clearing, settlement, transfer of ownership, and custody of securities.

- The Chairman, the Board members, the General manager, and/or any employees with
knowledge of company material information shall not trade, on their own, for their
account through a third party, or in any other capacity for another account, in the
securities of the company or those of the mother, subsidiary, sister, or affiliate company,
if the Securities of any of these companies are listed on the Market, during the following
periods-

* Ten [10) working days prior to the announcement of any material information
unless such information was the result of sudden or unforeseen events.

« Fifteen (15) days prior to the end of the quarterly, semi-annual, or annual financial
period and until the financial statements have been disclosed.
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The Board of Directors elected by the General assembly annual meeting on
1B/06/2020.(2020-2022
Name Category Qualifications | Their Their designation in | Membership
memberships and | any other crucial
designations in supervisory,
other governmental or
shareholding commercial bodies
companies =
Chairman of Fujairah’s E-
Sheikhy Mahamed Bin Mon- exooutive and MA in Project Government- Fujairah
Hamad Saif Al Shargi independent Management Governmaent e
representative
Mr. Mohamed Ghaith Al Mon-executive and University g‘;::.mm“:fm':zfﬁ Abu 1986
Maheirbi Bave
independent Graduate iyttt
y Gavernment business
Mr.  Abdul  Ghafour :"“ et University | Chairman of Board of | Fujairah government s
Hashem Behrooaian Graduate Directors of Fujairah | representative %
Independent
Natignal insurance
Director of Fujairah Free
2 Zone Autharity,
Mr, Mohamed Shariel Mon-executive University Board memiber of Courioniites WEWhE
lsabil Mohammed Rafeea | & Cradhiaie Fulairah national for develapment and 2017
Alawaadhi Independent insurance follow-up [FOIE)
Non-cxecutive .
Mr. F:
.I.I.rsh:::i Ahmed Abdulln & Lé“ﬁ“::ﬂ:i" Government business - 2014
Independert
Non-executive ! Lawyer- Board
Mr.
h:}iﬂ;qd Mokarak Al & l:;ﬂ"ggﬁ member of Fujairah - 2014
Independent national insurance
Hon-exeoutive . Istamic Development | Economic advisor to
rﬂ:::‘zlmd Abaiiaaty & L:;:_:'dﬁ:_? Bank Representative | Islamic Development 2020
Independent Saudi Arabia | Bank Saudi Arabia ]
7 Mon-exocutive ! Executive Chairman
Mr. Abdulatif Saad Lidwersiny :
Abdulatif Al Dousari & Graduate | O opring United : .
L= Inifependent General Trading Ca.
| pir. Mohamed Al : Farmer Treasury
ﬂ:uls:n Ewecutive Lfl..“r!;:fn::it? Businessman manager of Central Bank 2020
of Kuwait
Representative of the . :
Mr. Khaled Abdulla Sou University | Public institution for | W1 Géneral Birector of o
Hussein Abdilla Al Fadala Independent Graduate m:&ul‘ﬂ?- social security- Kuwait
Yice-chairman of
. borard of directors -
Mr. Saad Abdulla Al :““'“m" University Bayt Ca.
Hanian Itk il Gradisane Chairman of Board of it
pe Mrectors of Sawd
Projects Holding Co.
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The current Board of Directors was elected on 18/06/2020. No woman applied for a

nomination.

= No remunerations were paid to the members of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year

2021.

- No allowances were paid for attending meetings of committees arising from the Board
of Directors for the fiscal year 2022. The number of meetings of the Board of Directors
committees is shown in Clauses 5/C and 6/C.

- No additional allowances, salaries, or fees were paid for the fiscal year 2022,

5
a . Ll
FACTORY : P O, Box -11477, Dibba, Fujainsh Fgpmall La= WVEVY 1o -j"_—-:'
UAE UM TRADA bkl 3 pall ! jhatil
Tal, ; 09-2444011 - RN LA 1 cANE
Fax : 0E-2444016, 2484081 T e 2 R L L L TR L L.

Emad fujcemil eim.aa Coprilloey

T 1RAENTD

fujpamB2ieimas ;e fiit o gl



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.5.C

ppuh 3 peadll sdawl ol sl

HEAD OFFICE

PO, Box 1 600, FUJAIRAH
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
Ted.: O8-XE23111

Fax: 09-2227TT18

Email: hofcif®d@ifciho.as

Wil Sie! e fujSirahcamant com ool e plgs

i L e 0 8L
bpamdll = % e b e

Smalll iy gl 2 LaYY
LR LN '||i|;

T T YL R ._,-'.'-lld

el erde o R R e i (T

Email: fujoemd2Eeim ae

el am
S PAL T

fujcernB2@eim.ae ‘,.'.#;5..1' el

Namea capacity 1" 5 E Ath
24-02-2022 | 12-05-2022 | 11-08-2022 | 10-11-2022
sheikh/ Mohamed Bin Hamad Saif Al Shargi Chairman of the board v v W L
__Mr. Mohamed Ghaith Al Moheirbi Viee-Chairman of the board W ] X o
Mr. Abdul Ghafour Hashem Behroozian Member v W v v
Mr. Mohamed Sharief hablbe Alawadhi Member v L v ¥
M. Saeed Mobarak Obaid Al Zahmy Member v L v y
Mr. Fahd Ahmed Abdulla Al Shaer Member v v v '
_Mr. Waleed Abdulaziz Fageeh Member W v W W
hr. Abdulatif Saad Abdulatif Al Dousari Member X R M ®
Mr. Saad Abdulla Al Hamian - Member W L) W |
_Mr. Ehaled Abdulla Hussein Abdulla Al Fadala Member o v v x
Mr. Mohamed Saeed Al Dowisan Member v v v W f
» The Board of Directors has not delegated any of their tasks to either Board
Members or the Executive Management.
The executive Management powers are as follows;
- Manage FCI business activity and provide directives to the executive body in line
with FCI strategic objectives and policies decided by the Board of Directors,
provisions of law, and other legislation related to FCI business and activity.
- Provide the Board of Directors with precise periodical reports on FCI financial
positions, business, and actions taken in respect of risk management and internal
control system to enable the Board to review the set objectives, plans, and policies
and hold the Executive Management accountable for their performance.
- Submit recommendations in connection with any proposals they deem appropriate
to FCI business,
- Provide supervisory bodies with any required information, data, and documents
by provisions of law, regulations, instructions, and decisions in pursuance to either
of which they are issued.
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Total Annual Other cash or in kind
g Office Appointment Salary Remuneration remunerations
date Including far 2022 for 2022 or due in the
allowances Fulnire
1 General manager 01,/04/1981
2- DE'EIIJ.I.'_',' General manager 01,/03/2016
3- | Deputy General manager for
Administrative 23/05/1983
Affairs
4- | Finance Manager
09-12-2015
M - e 3,706,680 MIL ML
5 Works M
ot et s 18/02/2007
6 | Deputy Works Manager 16/12/2012
7 Sales &Marketing Manager 11-04-2021
| B | Internal Audit Manager 120272012
1 [nvestor Relations Management
Manager 19/07,/2011
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A- Talal Abu Ghazala International, a holding company containing a group of professional
companies, a reputable worldwide accounts, financial and professional auditors, and
consultants firm since its foundation 33 years ago, Talal Abu Ghazala employs groups of
highly qualified and well-experienced Arab professionals, existing in every Arab capital
city to provide the experts services on the financial and industrial matters to meet the
requirements of customers. They all form a professional group, at the international level;
it provides different services in the business field. The institution started its activities
about Thirty-three years ago and practices its activities now under the name and by the
vision approved by Talal Abu Ghazala International, It started as an institution that
provides chartered accountants, accounts auditors, financial services for the business
community in the Arab Gulf,

The external audit firm is independent of FCl and its Board of Directors, practicing
accounting audit, verifying financial statements, and controlling FCI accounts for the fiscal
year in which it has been appointed. The firm, for the sake of performing the duties, shall
have the right of access at any time to all FCI books, records and documents and to request
statements and notes that it deems necessary to obtain. The firm may verify FCI assets
and liabilities.

The external auditor attends General Assembly meetings, verifies procedures followed in
calling for the meeting, and provides his opinion on financial statements as to whether
there are any vielations of the provisions of FCI Articles of Incorporation, Companies Law,
ar General Assembly resolutions that might have taken place during the fiscal year.

E-
Audit firm name: Talal Abu-Ghazala &
Co.International
The number of vears spent as an external auditor for FCI; 4
The partner auditor’s name: Ali Hassan Shalabi
' The number of years spent as a partner auditor for FCI accounts: 3
| The partner auditor name: Zaid Ali Musleh
| The number of years spent as a partner auditor for FCI accounts: 1
' Total financial statements audit fees for 2022: o AED 240,000/=
(nher special service fees and costs rather than financial statements audit for 2022; NIL
Details and nature of the other provided services: _ NIL
Other services delivered during 2022 by another auditor rather than FCI auditor: No other external
auditor

C- No reservations have been incorporated by the external auditor in the interim or
annual financial statements for 2022.
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Mr. Fahad Ahmed Al Shaer, head of the Audit Committee, declares that he is responsible
for the committee system of the company and that he checked the mechanism of its work

and efficiency.

[ Name capacity | Category Fxperience Membership
University
; graduate government

Fahd Almed Abdulla Al Shaer Member Ii:;;ﬂ:;ﬁ business -a member of 2014
Mational Takaful
Board,
University
graduate/Chairman of
Board of Directors of

£ MNonexecutive® | Bait Company) Vice-chairman
Saad Abdulla Al Hanian Member Indapendent of Board of 2008
| Directors of Saudi
Projects Holding
| Group
X University

Abdulatif Saad Abdulatif Al Dousari | Member :":::1'1;’2':';‘:;;“& Graduate, Executive Chairman of 2017
Spring United General Trading Co
University

Khaled Abdulla Hussein Abdulla Al Mamiber Monexecutive& | Graduate/ Vice-General Director 2020

Fadala Independent of the Public Institution for social
security- Kuwait

The Obiecti fil f Audit C ittee:

The objective of the Audit Committee is to support the Board of Directors in respect of its
responsibility towards shareholders in connection with auditing FCI financial information
and matters regularly related to corporate governance to ensure the effective utilization
of available resources. Moreover, it controls and follows up the independence of the
auditor and whether he is objective and reviews the internal control systems.
= The Audit Committee undertakes all competencies and tasks contained in

Article (61) of the authority chairman resolution no. (3/R.M) of 2020 concerning the

approval of the Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide and its amendments.
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Name Capacity 1s Znd 3ri 4th Sth
24-02-2022 | 12-05-2022 | 25-07-2022 | 11-08-2022 | 10-11-2022

Mr. Fahd Ahmed Abdulla Al Head of the g J v
Shaer comimittes - ¥ ¥
Mr. Saad Abdulla Al

r. Saa u Hankan Mk ¥ ) v L) v
Khaled Abdulla Husseln |
Abdulla Al Fadala s b ¥ ¥ ¥ X
Abdulatif Saad Abdulatif Al 1
i Flember X W | v X X |

Mr.Abdul Ghafour Hashem Behroozian head of the nomination & remunerations

committee declares that he is responsible for the committee system of the company and
that he checked the mechanism of its work and efficiency.

Name capacity Category Experience Membership
Mr. Abdul Ghafour Hashem University Graduate/ Government
Behroozian Nonexeoulive business-
Chai
PO s Nl Chairman of Board of Directors of 1980
independent | Fujairak
| Natignal insurance —
Wr. tohamed Shariel habib University Graduate) Director of
Mohammed Rafeea Alawadhi MNonexecutive Fujairah Free Zone Authority- Fujairah,
Member & Board 2007
Independent membes OF Fujairah
Foundation for Regions Development
Kir. Saeed Mokarak Al Zahmy Nonexecutive Uiniversity Graduatey Lawyer- Board
Member B member of Fujairah national insuramce 2014
Independent
10
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The objective of the Nomination and Remunerations Committee is to determine
nomination policies and criteria for Board of Directors membership, periodical review of
the Board's requirements for capabilities, ensure the independence of independent
members, and prepare policies for the human resources including aspects of conflict of
interests, membership of other companies’ Board of Directors together with preparing
policies for awards, benefits, incentives, and salaries relating to the Board members and
staff and review such policies on annual basis.
* The Nomination Committee undertakes all competencies and tasks contained in
Article (59] of the authority chairman resolution no. (3/R.M) of 2020 concerning the
approval of the Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide and its amendments.,

1 LLSHLRAR L LR IS o TNA

Ist
Mame Capacity b
Mr. Abdul Ghafour Hashem Behroozian Chairman of the Committee o
Mr. Saced Mobarak Al Zahmy Member 4
vir. Mohamed Sharicl Habib Mohammed Rafeca Alawadhi Member 1 W

IH ] N Insiders dealings [olow-un and
supervisory committee declares that he is responsible for the system of the committee in
the company and that he reviewed the mechanism of its work and checked its efficiency.
EB-Names of committee members:-

1- Mr. Khalil Saeed Obaid Al Nuimi.

2- Mr. Ashraf Abdulkader Al Sayed.

The committee is responsible for following up and supervising insiders’ dealings and
properties and maintains a register in their respect.

1- Updating FCI list of insiders on the Website of Financial Market continually.

2- Notifying FCI insiders of the prohibition periods of their trading in FCI securities each
in due course.

3- Continuous follow-up of FCl insiders’ trading movement

4- Furnish the authority and stock market with the updated list at the beginning of the
fiscal year.
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* The supervision and Follow-up Committee insiders’ transactions undertakes all
competencies and tasks contained in Article (33) of the authority chairman
resolution no. (3/R.M) of 2020 concerning the approval of the Joint Stock Companies
Governance Guide and its amendments.

- The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for FCI's internal audit system
for reviewing the system’s operational mechanism and ensuring its efficiency.

FCI has established an effective Internal Audit Department. Ramakrishnan Subramanian,
the head of the Department, Compliance officer, Chartered Accountant and holder of BA
in Corporate Secretaryship was appointed on 12-02-2012 along with three professionally
qualified and experienced assistants.

- The Department aims at implementing a precise and robust system dealing with
delivering and developing departmental performance efficiency and FCI operations
efficiency and FCI internal control in terms of continuous auditing operational results,
examining financial records, assessing internal control system and assisting Senior
Management with enhancing FCI operations efficiency and effectiveness in respect of
discovering manipulation and monitoring errors in FCI financial system.

- The company's Internal Audit Department performs its duties following Article (68) of
the decision of the Securities and Commodities Authority Board of Directors No. 3 / RM
for the year 2020 regarding the adeption of the Governance Guide for Public Joint-stock
Companies and its amendments . The Department has the independence sufficient to
perform its tasks and directly report to the person in charge of the internal audit system.
FCladopts implementation of international standards of internal audit towards efficiently
achieving the required objectives and more cost-effective as reflected in the bases of
internal audit for ensuring the following:-

1- Reasonability and conformity of information and data,

2- The extent of consistency with policies, plans, procedures, regulations, laws and
instructions.

3- Extent of safeguarding FCI assets and property.

4- Extent of consistency of set activities, operations, and programs with the set purposes
and objectives and ensure being applied by supervisory bodies according to the set plans
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and objectives. The internal Audit Department prepares an annual control plan in liaison
with the Audit Committee and Departmental Managers or Heads of other FCI Sections.

The Internal Audit Department Manager submits detailed reports to the Board of
directors on internal audit system assessment demonstrating and providing proposals for
bridging gaps in the internal audit system periodically when required at any time as he
deems as the exigencies of such assessment may so require.

Concerning the internal audit department dealing with FCl major issues or those disclosed
in reports and annual accounts, the internal audit department implements governance
rules and constantly verifies compliance with the provisions of law and decisions that may
bridge gaps in the internal audit system through adhering to the following:

1) Basic control including control over financial affairs, operations, and risk management
2) Ensure FCI's ability to respond to changes in their business and external environment.

3) The extent of implementing international regulations, procedures, policies, and
submission of necessary reports to both the Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

* The audit department has not recorded any major violations or problems
within FCI during 2022

* 4 reports were issued by the internal audit department to the Board of
Directors during the fiscal year 2022,

Fujairah Cement Industries 'contributions to society and the environment varies to include
in-kind and monetary contributions in various fields that support the sustainability of the
individual ,the environment, and the surrounding community:-
Cash contributions:-
- FQl, through the Court of the Emir of the Ruler of Fujairah supports low-income citizens with
5000 bags of cement for home maintenance work to maintain a decent life for the Emirati
individual.
-FCl, contributed to the sponsorship of the 11" Urban Environment Conference 2022 in
Fujairah with an amount of AED 50,000/-
-FCl, contributed to the sponsorship of the International Matural Resources Exhibition 2022 in
cooperation with Fujairah Natural Resources Corporation with an amount of AED 30,000.
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-FCl, contributed with the participation of Dibba Al Fujairah Municipality in organizing the 51
National Day celebrations with an amount of AED 10,000.

-FCI, participated in the Middle East Manufacturing & Technology Exhibition 2022 in the
Emirate of Abu Dhabi with AED 5,000.

-FCI contributed to the support of the low-income nationals by assisting them in meeting
their cement needs.

-FCI contributed to the provision of professional training for university students in
different scientific fields.

-FCI earried out road repair works between Dibba and Al Taween and reforested the
whole roads in order to preserve the environment

- FCI exerts big efforts to reduce the emissions of the dust resulting from trucks that
transport the raw material from the quarry to the factory and within the factory by using
friendly environment chemicals for the unpaved roads.

-FCI ensures to provide a safe and healthy environment for all employees by following the
professional security and safety rules and training the employees in all fields of security,
safety, public health, and first aid.

-FCl is committed to maintain a clean surrounding environment and monitoring the air
quality by using the emission measurement devices in the air, and prepare and deliver the
reports to the ministry of environment to achieve a friendly environment cement
industry.

A) Monthly share price for 2022
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C) Shareholders’ Ownership Distribution on 31/12 /2022
i | Government of
cdassification Individuals Companies [Fujairah g Total
) Abu Dhabi)
Local 66,658,750 7,181,488 87,341,925 161,182,163
Arab 64,464,780 129,543,792 | cemeeeeeees - 194,008,572
Foreigner 664,585 10000 674.585
Total 131,788,115 136,735,280 B7,341,925 355,865,320
D- Shareholders who own 5% or more of FCI capital as of 31/12/2022.
Number Shares % Capital
-Government of Fujairah 82,541,250 23.194%
-Masser Ali Mohamed Khammas 59,635,524 16.758%
- Walra International 40,753,991 11.452%
Investment/ Clients
-National Investment 28,204,323 07.926%
Company
-Islamic Development 25,300,000 07.109%
Bank-KSA
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5 Share ownership Numberof | Number of Owned share percentage of
Shareholders | owned shares capital
1 Less than 50,000 1300 7861628 2210
2 | From 50,000 1o less than 500,000 L 22,184 883 6.2 3%
3 From 500,000 to less than 15.03%
5,000,000 a7 53474873
4 | More than 5 000000 9 272343936 TH.53%
| Total 1494 355,865,320 10y

F) Actions taken in respect of investors relations disciplines:

- The accountant Ashraf Abdul Kader Al Sayed has been appointed 1o be responsible for all

tasks related to investors relations subject , he enjoys the stipulated requirements contained in

Article (51) ltem (1) of the authority chairman resolution no. (3/R.M) of 2020 concerning the

approval of the Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide and its amendments,

- FCI website has been fully updated in both Arabic and English languages. A page for the

investors has been dedicated, updated and maintained continually in line with the international

standards including all means of communication with the Investors Relations Department.

- FCl is committed to publishing information and data being disclosed to supervisory bodies.

markets, or the public on the FCI website.

- Investors Relations Department Contacts:

Telephone: 0097192223111, Fax: 0097192227718, P.O: 600 Fujairah- Email: hofci@fiho.ac.

- Investors Relations page link on FCI website:

www. fujairahcement comdar/feifinvestor-relations-ar,

www fujairahcement.com/ar/ fei/investor-relations.

* The investors relations management_undertakes all competencies and tasks
contained in Article (51) of the authority chairman resolution no. (3/R.M) of 2020
concerning the approval of the Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide and iis
amendments.

Mr. Abdulla Ahmed Ali Al-Humaidi- 01-02-2021.
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1) Key Events during 2022;

-Renewal of accreditation certificates:

- 150-9001:2015 Quality Assurance Accreditation Certificate

- 150-45001:2018 Occupational Safety and Security Management Certificate

- 150-14001:2015 Environmental Management Certification

= Visit the Indian Standards Authority to obtain conformity of the company's products
with the requirements of the Indian market.

« Visit the Fujairah Environment Authority.

» Visiting the inspection company to ensure the safety of procedures for using coal dust
as an alternative fuel.

« Distributing Iftar meals for fasting people in cooperation with the Beit Al-Khair
Charitable Association.

-Celebration of national events:

-Flag Day

- Commemeoration Day

- 51st National Day

« Attending and contributing to the Middle East Exhibition for Manufacturing and
Technology in Abu Dhabi.

= Attending and contributing to the Eleventh Conference on the Environment of Cities in
Fujairah.

= Technical training for UAE university students in various engineering sections.
Training of the company's employees in various fields:

A workshop for engineers at the Mechanical section in Dubai.

- A workshop for engineers at the Instrumentation and Control Department in Dubai.

- Training workers inside the factory to fight fires.

= Signing an agreement for the use of alternative fuels [RDF) in cooperation with the
Ministry of Environment and Climate Change and the Emirates Alternative Fuels
Company.

= Attending meetings to discuss how to use Alternative Fuels (RDF) sponsored by Fujairah
Municipality and Fujairah Environment Authority.

» Calibration of air quality measuring devices.

= Developing the green belt in the quarries area.

|- A statement of the deals that the company made with related parties during the
vear 2022, which are equal to 5% or more of the company's capital.

= NIL
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1- Emiratization Percentage for 2020: 15 %
2. Emiratization Percentage for 2021: 15 %
3- Emiratization Percentage for 2022: 15 %
K) FCI innovative Projects and Initiatives

- By 2023 FCl is planning to replace 40 % of coal consumption by RI}F as an aliernative fuel o
reduce the GHG emissions.

= FCl shall be introduced to INDIA market afier the approval of Bureau of Indian standards for
our products which will improve FCI market and sales.

- FClis in the process of implementing ISO-17025:2017, Laboratory Management System, in its
Quality Lab which will help in achieving better quality Clinker and Cement for Global
marketing as a part of business strafegy.

= Fujairah Environmental Authority (FEA) will have the online access to FCI emission
meastirements system.

Internal Auditor Head of Nomination and Head of Auditing committee
Remunerations mittee

o= L
P o —

=

- Fujalrah Cement Industries  www.fuisirabcement.com
- Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange wwwadsace
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SUSTAINIBILITY REPORT-2022

Chairman’s Message

Sheikh Mohammed bin Hamad bin Saif Al Sharqi

As the Chairman of Fujairah Cement Industries, | am pleased to share the
2022 Sustainability Report which demonstrates the company's commitment to take
all measures that will achieve the sustainable development goals by improving the
quality of our products while preserving environmental wealth and effective

community contribution.

Fujairah Cement Industries is proud of its excellence in achieving the
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) in our belief that achieving sustainability
Is the main pillar on which the trust of customers, employees, suppliers and the local

community in Fujairah Cement Industries is built.

9 FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 2



SUSTAINIBILITY REPORT-2022

General Manager's Message

Mr. Nasser Ali Khammas

On behalf of Fujairah Cement Industries, I am pleased to share the
sustainability report for 2022, which reflects the company's efforts in achieving the
sustainable development goals through the company's keenness to invest
meaningfully in improving the quality of our products using the latest technological
means that contribute to preserving the environment from the harmful effects
resulting from the industry, and this report presents the most prominent strategies

used to achieve the highest levels of sustainability.

‘\5'5' " FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 3
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«» About the company:

Fujairah Cement Industries PJSC was established in the Emirate of
Fujairah on December 20, 1979, with a capital estimated at AED 555 million
by Decree No. 3/79 issued by His Highness Sheikh Hamad bin Mohammed
Al Sharqi, Ruler of the Emirate of Fujairah (may God protect him), and its
Board of Directors is currently chaired by His Highness Sheikh Mohammed
bin Hamad bin Saif Al Shargi (may God protect him), and the General

Manager of the company is Mr. Nasser Ali Khammas Al Yammahi.

The company's head office is located in the Emirate of Fujairah, and
the factory is located in the city of Dibba Al-Fujairah, the Fujairah Cement
plant consists of two production lines with a production capacity of 4 million

tons per year, and 2.4 million tons of cement per year.

Fujairah Cement Industries works to meet the needs of the local and
Gulf market of high-quality cement products such as:
e Ordinary Portland cement
e Salt-resistant Portland cement
e Portland cement is medium resistance to salts
e Ordinary Portland clinker
e Salt-resistant Portland clinker

e Portland clinker medium resistance to salts

=" FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 4
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Fujairah Cement Industries uses the latest cement production methods and
centralized monitoring of the production process, environmental emissions and
energy consumption to ensure the quality of products while preserving the safety of

the environment and rationalizing the consumption of natural resources and energy.

+» About sustainability:

Sustainable development has been defined as development that meets
the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own and future needs, and sustainable development
also calls for concerted efforts in order to build a better future for humanity
and the planet, and to achieve sustainable development there must be three
basic elements:

= Economic Growth
= Social Inclusion

» environmental protection
¢ The United Nations 2030 Agenda:

In September 2015, world leaders at a historic UN summit adopted the
17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and their 169 targets for the 2030
Agenda for Sustainable Development, to be implemented from January 2016.
The SDGs build on the eight Millennium Development Goals (MDGSs), which
seek to end extreme poverty, halt the spread of AIDS and provide primary
education to all children by 2015. It was agreed that over the next fifteen
years States would exert efforts to eliminate Poverty in all its forms, fighting

inequality and tackling climate change, with the inclusion of all.

=== FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 5
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+» The UAE's Sustainability Agenda:

The UAE is focused on achieving the Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs) that will enable access to clean energy, access to adequate and
affordable food, quality education, healthcare, sustainable economic growth,
sound ecosystems, and increased resource efficiency as issues that resonate
strongly in the UAE. The UAE has also pledged to "leave no one behind™ and

to take the world down a sustainable and resilient path.

+ Fujairah Cement Industries' vision towards achieving sustainability in

various fields:

Fujairah Cement Industries puts sustainability at the top of the
company's agenda, recognizing the importance of sustainability for the
individual and society, in line with the UAE's sustainability agenda and in
line with the United Nations Vision 2030 for sustainable development.

This report presents the efforts exerted by Fujairah Cement Industries
in order to achieve the sustainable development goals in various areas

related to the performance of the company and the industry.

=" FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 6
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s The performance of Fujairah Cement Industries in various fields

towards sustainability:

1. Environmental Performance:
Fujairah Cement Industry is keen to take all necessary measures to reduce the
effects resulting from the industry in various fields through periodic
monitoring and measurement and work to reduce environmental damage and
pollution and improve the use of natural resources to maintain their
sustainability, and the following is a presentation of the efforts made by the

company in the field of environmental sustainability in various fields:

s Air Quality Monitoring:

Fujairah Cement Industries takes all necessary measures to monitor
ambient air quality and ensure the safety of the work environment and has
obtained international accreditation in the field of environmental
management 1SO-14001:2015

Procedures followed to ensure air quality within the company:
o Installation of air quality and dust measuring devices
surrounding the factory and quarry area
o Periodic calibration of measuring devices to ensure the
accuracy of measurements and ensure their compliance with
state standards.
o Periodic change of filters used in the cement manufacturing

process to purify the air from dust.

=== FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 7
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+» Reducing greenhouse gas emissions:

Total greenhouse gas emissions are 0.310 kg carbon dioxide per ton of
clinker, and Fujairah Cement Industries is keen to reduce these emissions in
accordance with the United Nations Convention on Climate Change and in
line with the objectives of the UAE strategy to reach zero emissions by 2050
by:

o The use of alternative fuels in the combustion process.

o Work to increase the green spaces in the factory and the
quarry area.

o Using the latest technologies in the cement production

process with the lowest carbon emissions.

e Fujairah Cement Industries in cooperation with the Ministry of
Environment and Climate Change and Emirates Fuel Company
Alternative RDF to take the initiative to sign an agreement to use RDF fuel

as an alternative to coal in the cement production process.

e Fujairah Cement Industries, in cooperation with Tadweer, replaces 10%
of coal using dust

Carbon produced as waste for the aluminum industry as an alternative fuel

to coal, which contributes to reducing coal consumption, which in turn is the

main factor in increasing greenhouse gas emissions.

¢ Fujairah Cement Industries has developed the green belt in the quarry area
and the factory has planted nearly 15,000 trees to reduce dust and increase

the level of oxygen in the air.

=== FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 8
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% Water Resources Management:

Fujairah Cement Industries is always keen on the constant economy in
the consumption of resources
Water consumption is limited to the necessary needs in the conduct of the
industrial process, such as cooling equipment and human consumption for
workers, and water used for agricultural purposes is recycled by drip and
steam production used in the production of electrical energy from the power
plant.

e Fujairah Cement Industries' total water consumption is 1000

cubic meters per day

++ Raw Material Management:

Fujairah Cement Industries is keen to economize on the extraction of
raw materials in a way that ensures sustainability of natural resources It also
continuously works to study the available alternatives to natural resources
for raw materials and fuel in order to ensure the sustainability of natural

resources and does not harm the quality of cement products.

=== FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 9
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+ Industrial Waste Management:

Fujairah Cement Industries is characterized by dedicating all its efforts
to reach a green industry
"Zero waste" by recycling industrial waste and exploiting it in various fields,

for example:

A. Use used tires and wood waste as fuel and avoid burials.

B. Using waste filters and oils used in combustion processes as
alternative fuel.

C. Reuse of waste thermal insulation bricks used inside furnaces in

aesthetic works.

=" FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 10
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2. Economic Performance:

Fujairah Cement Industries devotes all scientific and technical efforts and
practical experiences towards responsible production, economy in the consumption
of natural resources, diversification of energy sources, recycling of wasted energy
and industrial waste resulting from the manufacturing process.

e Electric Power:

The average consumption of the electric power plant is 75 kW per ton of clinker.
Fujairah Cement Industries always seeks to reduce the consumption of direct
electrical energy, which depends in its production on the consumption of carbon
fuel coal, so Fujairah Cement Industries adopted the method of blending electrical
energy by establishing an electric power plant from combustion exhaust gases in the
industry.

o Blending Power:

POWER BLENDING

= TPP = FEWA = WHR

.fergsl‘
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e Thermal Power:

The cement industry depends mainly on the use of thermal energy
in the process of combustion of raw materials for the production of
cement inside the furnaces, and coal is the main economic source of
thermal energy, but the use of coal in the combustion process results in
many environmental damages, so Fujairah Cement Industries has been
keen on research and development in the industrial process to reduce
the use of coal until reaching its complete replacement with

environmentally friendly and less harmful energy sources:

o The Initiative to sign an agreement for the use of
alternative fuels in cooperation with the Ministry of
Environment and Climate Change and the Emirates
Alternative Fuels Company RDF in 2022

o Using carbon dust as waste from the aluminium
manufacturing process as an alternative fuel in

collaboration with EGA and Tadweer

o Reuse of factory waste such as filter fabrics, tires,

wood and spent oils as alternative fuels.

o Monitor and develop the production process to reduce
the fuel consumption required for the combustion

process

=== FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 12
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3. Community Performance:
Fujairah Cement Industries places social responsibility on its shoulders,
which
Serves the community, contributes to its sustainability and development, raises the
level of the individual and society, and preserves its security and health, believing

that the individual is the basic building block in building society.

«» Contributions of Fujairah Cement Industries towards the

surrounding environment:

Fujairah Cement Industries is always keen to preserve the surrounding
environment and minimize the impacts
Harmful to the industry on the surrounding environment, which ensures the health
and safety of members of the surrounding community through the following

activities:

o Developing the green belt and increasing the green
spaces surrounding the factory and the quarry area to
reduce dust emissions.

o Spraying environmentally friendly chemicals on dirt
roads to reduce the spread of dust resulting from the
transfer of raw materials from quarries to the factory.

o Contribute and sponsor the Eleventh World
Conference on Urban Environment 2022 in
cooperation in Fujairah.

o Contribution to the Middle East Manufacturing and
Technology Exhibition in Abu Dhabi 2022.

=== FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC Page 13
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% Contributions of Fujairah Cement Industries towards the

community:

Fujairah Cement Industries appreciates its responsibility towards the
local community and works with all its resources in the service of the
community to ensure the advancement of the individual and maintain

human resources and effective national cadres in the community.

o Training university students in various practical fields
according to their specializations of study and

preparing them for the labor market.

o Encourage employees to participate in national events

and celebrations held in various local forums.
o Cash contribution to various local institutions.
o In-kind support for low-income individuals to

facilitate the establishment of their own homes in

cooperation with the Fujairah Ruler's Court.
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% Contributions of Fujairah Cement Industries towards

employees:

Fujairah Cement Industries believes that the individual is the main
pillar in building society and that investing in building the individual is what
ensures the sustainability of the economic process towards a better future, and
from this point of view, Fujairah Cement Industries is working to motivate
its employees of both sexes to integrate into society and self-development

and contribute to this through:

o Encourage and encourage employees to participate in

various scientific forums and national celebrations.

o Providing training programs for employees in various

professional disciplines.

o Providing practical training courses within the facility such

as security, safety and firefighting training.

o Support, encourage and reward employees for their

scientific and practical achievements.
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+ Fujairah Cement Industries in -kind and cash Contributions:

Fujairah Cement Industries 'contributions to society and the
environment vary to include in-kind and monetary contributions in various
fields that support the sustainability of the individual ,the environment and

the surrounding community :

o Fujairah Cement Industries ,through the Court of the Emir

of the Ruler of Fujairah ,supports low-income citizens with
®,+ « +bags of cement for home maintenance work to
ensure a decent life for the Emirati individual.

o Fujairah Cement Industries contributed to the sponsorship
of the 11" Urban Environment Conference Y+ YY in
Fujairah with an amount of AED ¢ «5« |

o Fujairah Cement Industries contributed to the sponsorship
of the International Natural Resources Exhibition Y+ YY in
cooperation with Fujairah Natural Resources Corporation
with an amount of AED 30,000.

o Fujairah Cement Industries contributed with the
participation of Dibba Al Fujairah Municipality in
organizing the fifty-first National Day celebrations with an
amount of AED 10,000.

o Fujairah Cement Industries participated in the Middle East
Manufacturing & Technology Exhibition Y+ YY in the
Emirate of Abu Dhabi with AED 5,000.
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+ FCI Future Projects and Innovations:

Fujairah Cement Industries always seek the opportunity for
improvements and innovative projects which will help in achieving the

sustainability of the environment and natural resources.

o By 2023 FCl is planning to replace 40 % of coal consumption

by RDF as an alternative fuel to reduce the GHG emissions.

o FCI shall be introduced to INDIA market after the approval
of Bureau of Indian standards for our products which will

improve FCI market and sales.

o FCI is in the process of implementing 1SO-17025:2017,
Laboratory Management System, in its Quality Lab which
will help in achieving better quality Clinker and Cement for
Global marketing as a part of business strategy.

o Fujairah Environmental Authority (FEA) will have the online

access to FCI emission measurements system.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE-2022
FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES PJSC

% ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ( i.e; ENVIRONMENTAL KPIs)

E1l. GHG Emissions e Total Green House Gases emissions = 700 Gg of CO2 per annum.

i . e Total GHG emissions per tons of Clinker: 0.310 of CO, / tonnes of Clinker.
E2.Emission Intensity

e Total amount of Energy Directly Consumed: 19,960 MWh
E3. Energy Usage e Total Amount of energy indirectly consumed: 179,360 MWh

e Total Direct energy usage per tonnes of Clinker:
a) UNIT1 =82 KWh/tonnes of Clinker
b) UNIT2 =67 KWh/tonnes of Clinker
e Cement Grinding: 35 KWh/tonnes of cement.

e TPP :70.09 %
E5. Energy Mix e FEWA :10.14 %
e WHR :19.77%
e The total water requirement for the facility is 1000 m3/day divided in different uses :
a) 100 m3/day used for domestic purposes.
b) 900 m3/day used for industrial purposes.
E6. Water Usage e The water for industrial purposes is being used for, Process Cooling, Boiler make up, cooling tower
make up and dust suppression for the activities in the cement plant.
e Domestic wastewater is being collected in septic tank and disposed through Tankers of Dibba
Municipality.

E4. Energy Intensity




E7. Environmental Operations

We have Quality, Health & Safety, and Environment & Energy Management Policy in Place. The
Management is committed towards Quality Control, Waste Management, and Water Management
& Energy Management.

E8. Environmental Oversight

Our Top Management periodically discusses and manage the Sustainability Issues. Besides these, we
monthly conduct Environment Committee Meeting where we sort out all the issues pertaining to
Environment Protection and Climate Change.

E9. Environmental Oversight

Our Top Management always focusses on Sustainability issues as an Official Agenda. We conduct
Environment Health and Safety Meeting on Monthly Basis. The raised issues are discussed and
Corrective actions are implemented as a part of continual improvement.

E10. Climate Risk Mitigation

For Climate Risk Mitigation, FCl invested proactively on the following issues:
a) Roads Shouldering Repair in Taween Quarry Road, after Flash Flooding: 225,000 AED
b) Green Belt Development(Tree Plantation) in FCI Plant & Camp:
25,000 AED
c) DUSTEX Spray on Quarry Roads to control Fugitive Emissions:
110,000 AED




0,

«» SOCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (i.e; SOCIAL KPls)

S1.CEO Pay Ratio e Ratio: CEO total compensation to median Full Time Equivalent (FTE) total compensation is 20:1
S2. Gender Pay Ratio e Ratio: 3.5:1
$3. Employee Turnover e Employee Turnover: 7.5%

Gender diversity percentage based on :
e Total enterprise headcount : Male 97%, Female 3%
e Entry-and mid-level positions : Male 90%, Female 10%
e Senior-and executive-level positions : Male 100%

S4. Gender Diversity

$5. Temporary Worker Ratio e We don’t have part time workers.

$6. Non Discrimination e We do not discriminate employees based on cast and creed. Commitment to creating a diverse, open, equal and
harassment-free work environment




$7. Injury Rate

Average Injury Rate for 2022 = 2.75
No fatalities

S8. Global Health & Safety

FCl is 1ISO-45001:2018(Occupational Health & Safety Management System Certified Company.
Ensuring Healthy and safe working conditions for employees & contractors is a fundamental key to corporate
social responsibility, and is one of the most important issues for FCI.

The management is committed to Health & Safety of employees by providing better working environment

complying with all statutory requirements.

S9. Child & Forced Labor

FCI Fulfill its compliance with all applicable labor-related laws & regulations.

Strict prohibition of child labor, forced labor and employment discrimination. FCl is Committed for creating a
diverse, open, equal and harassment-free work environment. We have Zero-tolerance on any human rights
violations.

$10. Human Rights

FCl is dedicated to protecting its employees' rights and interests and therefore it strictly complies with labor-
related laws and regulations. We place the utmost value on human rights in our operations, and we treat all
employees, including contract employees and interns, with the same dignity and respect.

S11. Nationalization

2020: 15.0%
2021: 15.0%
2022 : 15.0%

$12. Community Investment

FCl is greatly concerned with undertaking the responsibility for the service of the society and surrounding
environment.

FCl seeks through its employee to participate in all the national occasions and social events of the different
religious, cultural and social activities.

FCl participates and sponsors the 11t International Envirocities Conference 2022 in Fujairah




+* GOVERNANCE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (i.e; GOVERNANCE KPIs)

G1. Board Diversity

No women representation in Board of Directors in 2022.

No women applied for the nomination for the Current Board of Directors post.

G2. Board Independence

The company Prohibits CEO from serving as board chair.

Total Percentage of board seats occupied by independent board members= 91%

G3. Incentivized Pay

We provide ample opportunities and motivational incentives to employees. Some of them are Performance Linked
Incentives, Good Work Awards, Letters of Appreciation, Special Increments, Promotions and Nomination to
external training programs in UAE and abroad.

G4. Supplier Code of Conduct

FCl insure that all suppliers follows its code of conduct

G5. Ethics & Prevention of
Corruption

The employees certifies thru their declaration form, that they are not indulged in corruption practices, neither they
are involved in any business in FCI

All the employees have formally certified their compliance as per the prevention of corruption policy.




e |T department of FCl keeps vigilant about data protection policy.

G6. Data Privac .
v e The Company has adopted reasonable security practices and procedure to ensure that the Sensitive Personal

Information/ Official Data is preserved in a secured manner.

G7. Sustainability Reporting e FCl publish Sustainability Report integrated with Annual Report

e FCl publish Sustainability reports of FCI based on UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

G8. Disclosure Practices
e FCl Sustainability Report is in line with UN Sustainable Development Goals

G9. External Assurance e FCl have plans for our Sustainability Data to be verified by 3™ Party in the upcoming years.






